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As in the previous year, the global economy recorded a growth 
of 2.4% in 2015, with the overall economic performance dif-
fering from region to region. Global economic growth in 2015 
was driven more by industrialised countries than by emerging 
economies. In China, the world’s second-largest economy, eco-
nomic changes led to falling imports and weaker demand for 
raw materials. Economic growth slowed in 2015 and, at 6.9%, 
dipped below the 7% mark for the first time, also impacting other 
emerging markets. 

Conversely, the US economy grew at the same rate as in the 
previous year, with buoyant private consumption and rising public 
expenditure and investments generating growth of 2.4% in 2015. 

Growth began picking up again in the eurozone as well, with 
the economy expanding by 1.5% compared with 0.9% in 2014. 
This trend was favoured by low oil prices, the European Central 
Bank’s expansionary monetary policy and the decline of the euro 
against other currencies, notably the dollar. 

The downward trend in commodity prices is reflected in the price 
trend for crude oil. The combined effect of persistently high pro-
duction volumes and lower economic growth in the emerging 
markets was to push down oil prices, at times quite dramatically, 
with the price of a barrel of Brent crude averaging USD 52 in the 
year under review.
 
(Source: EIA, January 2016)

1.1. INDUSTRY-SPECIFIC CONDITIONS IN THE AVIATION
INDUSTRY 

Thanks to rising passenger numbers and low fuel costs, 2015 
is regarded as a very good year for the aviation industry. Global 
passenger traffic increased by 6.5% and freight traffic by 2.2%. 
The three most important regions for passenger traffic all perfor-
med well, with passenger traffic growing by 8.2% in Asia, 5.0% 
in Europe, and 3.2% in North America (source: IATA, February 
2016).

Rising passenger numbers are prompting airlines to expand their 
fleets, with the global fleet growing by 4.5% in 2015 (source: 
Ascend) and the number of flying hours increasing by 6.6%. 

According to IATA, the international aviation industry showed 
record profits in 2015, thanks to lower kerosene prices and an 
improved utilisation rate of almost 80%. Towards the end of the 
year, the airlines could reckon with revenues of USD 710 billion, 
with profits amounting to USD 33 billion. This corresponds to a 
doubling of their profit margin to 4.6% (source: IATA, December 
2015).

Airbus and Boeing delivered a total of 1,397 aircraft in 2015 
compared with 1,350 in the previous year. This equates to a rise 
of 3.5%. The order backlog for aircraft seating 100 or more pas-
sengers rose from 12,800 in 2014 to 13,400 at year-end 2015 
(source: Ascend Online). Assuming unchanged production rates, 
this corresponds to a workload of nine years.

Data from recent years as well as key figures in 2015 underpin 
the continued positive development of the aviation industry in 
general. From today’s perspective, the global aviation market 
should continue to develop in a positive manner also moving 
forward. These estimates are based on the following general 
growth trends: 

• According to the market analyses of the major OEMs, passen-
ger volumes will show an annual growth rate of 5% between 
2015 and 2033.

• Based on current estimates, the existing fleet of 18,500 com-
mercial aircraft (status April 2016) will grow to roughly 37,500 
units by 2034. 

• 12,400 airliners from the existing fleets will reach the end of 
their service life and be replaced by modern aircraft models. 

• Based on these estimates, a total of 31,400 new airliners will 
be required over the next 19 years. 

In the next two decades, the main growth markets in the avi-
ation industry will continue to be the Asia/Pacific markets 
(+6.3% p.a. ) ,  China (+6.6% p.a. )  and the Middle East 
(+7.4% p.a.). On the one hand, this growth will be mainly achieved 
through annual increases in GDP in the markets mentioned above, 
and on the other, demand from the local population for air travel 
will show strong growth, with these economic areas thus account- 
ing for more than 50% of total future demand for new aircraft. 

465 business jets were delivered in the first nine months of 2015, 
up 1.3% on the same period of the previous year (source: GAMA, 
October 2015). 

1.2. OVERALL ASSESSMENT OF THE BUSINESS
ENVIRONMENT 

As in 2014, the global economy grew by 2.4% in the year under 
review, with growth being increasingly driven by industrialised 
countries rather than emerging economies.

In the opinion of the International Monetary Fund (IMF), dra-
matically lower commodity prices represent one of the biggest 
risks to the global economy. Although countries like Germany 
are benefiting from these lower prices, from a global perspective, 
however, there are numerous countries that are on the losing 
end – especially energy exporters such as Canada and Norway. 

The aviation industry has been on a growth path for some years 
now and is growing faster than the global economy. Global pas-
senger traffic increased by 6.5% in 2015 – the sixth year in suc-
cession, in which the growth rate has exceeded 5%. Therefore, 
from today’s perspective, the long-term growth forecasts for the 
aviation industry of 5% per year on average also seem realistic 
for the future.

2. DEVELOPMENT OF THE FACC GROUP

In the 2015/16 financial year, the FACC Group generated 
revenues of EUR 587.5 mill ion. This means an increase of 
EUR 58.6 million or 11.1% compared to the previous year. 
Product revenues increased by 11.6% to EUR 525.9 million. 

Group Management Report of the FACC Group for the 
2015/2016 Financial Year 
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Revenues from the billing of development services rose by 7.1% 
to EUR 61.6 million in the period under review. 

In the period under review, fraudulent activities originated outside 
the company (Fake President Incident) and led to an illicit outflow 
of EUR 52.8 million of liquid funds from the company. Thanks to 
countermeasures, which were put in place straight away, a sum 
of EUR 10.9 million deposited on recipient accounts was frozen. 
This amount was recorded as non-current receivables in the 
balance sheet. As a result, the remaining amount of EUR 41.9 
million (one-off effect) was recognised as a loss under various 
expenses. It can be assumed that the sums on frozen bank ac-
counts will not be recovered over the short term. 

Including this loss, earnings before interest, taxes and fair value 
measurement of derivative financial instruments (EBIT) total-
led EUR –23.4 million in the 2015/16 financial year (2014/15: 
EUR –4.5 million). Adjusted for this one-off effect, EBIT amounted 
to EUR 18.6 million in the 2015/16 financial year.

Group earnings after taxes amounted to EUR –21.9 million in the 
period under review (2014/15: EUR –9.6 million).

The balance sheet total decreased by EUR 19.1 million to EUR 
699.2 million compared to the previous year. 

Non-current assets increased part icularly with regard to 
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment. In the 
period under review, investments were made in accordance 
with the investment budget and amounted to EUR 50.9 million 
(2014/15: EUR 77.8 million). Capitalised development costs 
contained in investments amounted to EUR 24.0 mil l ion 
(2014/15: EUR 30.3 million) and were mainly driven by enginee-
ring services associated with the development of the Airbus 
A350 Winglet, Embraer Legacy 450/500 and Embraer E-Jet 190, 
A320 new cabin interiors as well as A350 interiors. 

Current assets of FACC Group fell by EUR 49.9 million in the year 
under review. Trade receivables and inventories registered a sig-
nificant increase due to the growth in product revenues. Receiv- 
ables from affiliated companies dropped by EUR 16.3 million. 
The loss incurred by the company as a result of the cyber fraud 
also led to an outflow of liquid funds totalling EUR 52.8 million. 

FACC Group’s equity reached a level of EUR 304.4 million at the  
end of the 2015/16 financial year. This corresponds to an equity 
ratio of 43.5% (28 February 2015: 43.8%).

Net debt amounted to EUR 171.9 million in the period under 
review financial year (28 February 2015: EUR 102.6 million).

Cash and cash equivalents of FACC Group stood at EUR 
56.2 million as of the balance sheet date (28 February 2015: 
EUR 111.0 million).

Net cash flow from ongoing operating activities was materially 
affected by changes in the net working capital and by earnings 
before interest, taxes and fair value measurement of derivative 
financial instruments. 

Net cash outflows resulting from investing activities amounted 
to EUR 50.8 million and were mainly driven by the planned 
investments in the expansion of Plant II and III as well as by 
investments in new aircraft programmes in the form of capitalised 
engineering services and investments in new tools. 

Based on available credit lines (excluding cash and cash equiva-
lents), free liquidity stood at EUR 66.2 million as of the balance 
sheet date (28 February 2015: EUR 67.0 million).

3. DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS SEGMENTS

3.1. AEROSTRUCTURES SEGMENT

Revenue in  the  Aerost ructures  segment  amounted to 
EUR 273.5 mill ion in the 2015/16 financial year (2014/15: 
EUR 273.3 million). Revenues from product deliveries remained 
almost at the previous year’s level, totalling EUR 234.4 million 
compared to EUR 242.5 million in the 2014/15 financial year. 
This corresponds to a decline of 3.3% compared to the pre-
vious year. In contrast, revenues from development activities 
increased by 27.3% from EUR 30.8 million to EUR 39.2 million 
in the period under review.

Earnings before interest, taxes and fair value measurement of de-
rivative financial instruments (EBIT) in the Aerostructures segment 
stood at EUR 13.3 million in the 2015/16 financial year (2014/15: 
EUR 25.0 million).

This change in the earnings position is mainly based on the fact 
that division earnings in the year under review were reduced 
by EUR 19.5 million as a result of the Fake President Incident. 
Excluding the effects of the Fake President Incident, operating 
EBIT would have totalled EUR 32.9 million, thus considerably 
exceeding the previous year’s level. The earnings contribution 
from the product business could be maintained at a sustainably 
high level. 

3.2. ENGINES & NACELLES SEGMENT

Revenue in the Engines & Nacelles segment amounted to 
EUR 116.6 mill ion in the 2015/16 financial year (2014/15: 
EUR 93.9 million). Revenues from product deliveries increased by 
24.1% from EUR 87.2 million in the previous year to EUR 108.2 
million in the year under review. Revenues from development 
activities also grew by 15.1% from EUR 7.3 million to EUR 8.4 
million in the 2015/16 financial year.

The development of the Nacelles segment in the year under 
review continued to be mainly influenced by the ramp-up of 
serial production of the A350 Translating Sleeve project, while 
the sister product for Boeing 787 is already being produced 
in large quantities. Positive developments which are worth 
mentioning include the slight increase in the output rate of the 
fan cowls for the Airbus A320ceo, which continued to record 
stable sales. Older programmes such as the GIV fan cowls 
are being gradually replaced by new products and therefore 
registered a considerable reduction. Both Airbus A380 Rear 
Secondary Structure and Inlet Outer Barrel programmes 
developed in a relatively stable manner: they were only subject to 
minor fluctuations in the short-term operational planning process.

In the year under review, the Engine Composites segment 
continued to develop in a positive manner after it had reported 
a significant decline in output volumes in the previous year due 
to the one-off reduction of inventories at Rolls-Royce, one of 
the company’s key customers. Also in the Engine Composites 
area, the A350 Trent XWB and PW800 Bypass Duct projects 
made a pivotal contribution to the development of the business 
according to plan. The Boeing 787 Trent 1000 project performed 
wel l  in l ine with expectat ions, whereas the Airbus A380 
programmes were affected by the preferred selection of the 
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engines produced by Pratt & Whitney instead of those manufac-
tured by Rolls-Royce. 

Earnings before interest, taxes and fair value measurement of 
derivative financial instruments (EBIT) in the Engines & Nacelles 
segment amounted to EUR –13.3 million in the 2015/16 financial 
year (2014/15: EUR –22.6 million).

In the year under review, division earnings were reduced by 
EUR 8.2 million as a result of the Fake President Incident. 
Excluding the effects of the Fake President Incident, operating 
EBIT would have totalled EUR –5.1 million, thus considerably 
exceeding the previous year’s level.

In the Engines & Nacelles division, the earnings contribution from 
engine programmes could be further increased. However, the 
B787 TRSL project within the nacelles programmes had a nega-
tive impact on the earnings performance of the division and con-
sequently on overall Group results. This is mainly attributable to 
the fact that the negotiations of amendments to certain contracts 
with customers could not be concluded, as had also been the 
case in the previous year. 

3.3. INTERIORS SEGMENT

Revenue in the Interiors segment amounted to EUR 197.4 
mill ion in the 2015/16 financial year (2014/15: EUR 161.7 
million), as the division was able to achieve a considerable 
increase in product deliveries compared to the previous year. 
In the year under review, product revenue stood at EUR 183.3 
million (2014/15: EUR 145.6 million). This increase of 25.9% is 
almost entirely attributable to the new A350, Legacy 500 and 
CL350 programmes, whereas revenues from existing series pro-
grammes such as the A320, A380 and Phenom 300 remained 
relatively stable. Revenues from development activities declined 
to EUR 14.1 million after EUR 16.2 million in the previous year. 

The earnings situation of the Interiors division in the year under 
review was influenced by the ramp-up of the new A350 projects. 
Additional costs in the production area were mainly due to the 
increase in the number of employees, which became necessary 
in order to cope with the significant ramp-up of series produc-
tion for the A350 projects. Conversely, production costs in the 
business jet manufacturing area were reduced, as planned, com-
pared to the previous year. The earnings performance of the pro-
grammes was largely in line with planning figures, although the 
stabilisation measures with regard to the ramp-up of the A350 
projects progressed less rapidly than originally planned. 

Earnings before interest, taxes and fair value measurement of 
derivative financial instruments (EBIT) in the Interiors segment 
amounted to EUR –23.4 million in the 2015/16 financial year 
(2014/15: EUR –6.9 million).

In the year under review, division earnings were reduced by 
EUR 14.2 million as a result of the Fake President Incident. 
Excluding the effects of the Fake President Incident, operating 
EBIT would have totalled EUR –9.2 million, remaining below the 
previous year’s level.

4. RISK REPORT 

FACC is exposed to unpredictable situations in its daily business 
operations, which may have potentially negative effects. In order 
to be adequately prepared and be able to deal with any such 
situations appropriately, FACC has established a Group-wide risk 
management system.

Within the framework of this risk management system, any oc- 
curring or potential risks are continuously monitored, assessed 
and reported by the respective operating units to the Man- 
agement Board twice a year, once they have been reviewed by 
management. Exceptional events are reported immediately to 
the responsible risk owner or risk management director, who 
decides if the Management Board is to be notified straight away. 
The Management Board, in turn, reports to the Supervisory 
Board in its meetings. This ensures that significant risks are de-
tected early on and corresponding measures to avoid or mitigate 
these risks are put in place.

According to the Management Board, potential risks currently 
identified are deemed manageable and controllable and, there- 
fore, do not jeopardise the company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. 

To support the timely identification and assessment of risks, 
effective internal risk control systems were introduced, which 
provide reliable results. Software tools for the execution of FMEA 
(Failure Mode and Effects Analysis) are well integrated and 
provide significant support for the risk minimisation process both 
in the product development phase and subsequently during 
ongoing production by adopting preventive measures.

4.1. MANAGEMENT RISKS

Based on market observations and analyses, a six-year business 
plan is created, which defines the basic strategy of the company 
and is reviewed and approved by the Supervisory Board. The 
specific business objectives for each financial year are derived 
from this plan, which is updated on an annual basis. Short-term 
market changes pose the biggest risk here. Besides, operation- 
al success is also continually jeopardised by external factors, 
which can often scarcely be influenced. FACC’s management is 
responsible for implementing policy consistently, while prompt-
ly responding to short-term changes in line with the defined 
corporate strategy. This is to ensure that the company’s strategic 
orientation along with the planned sales and profit targets are 
taken into due consideration. 

4.1.1. Business interruption risk
The company’s production sites and plants are constantly 
maintained and serviced, thus limiting the risk of breakdowns 
or lengthy production downtimes to a minimum. The business 
interruption risk is also covered by business interruption insurance 
with an indemnity period of 18 months.

4.1.2. Financial risk
In this case, risk management falls under the responsibility of the 
company’s treasury in the finance and accounting department. 
The treasury department assesses and hedges financial risks in 
close cooperation with the operating business segments and the 
company’s banks.

4.1.3. Interest rate risk
The interest rate risk – the possible fluctuation in value of finan-
cial instruments due to changes in market interest rates or future 
cash flows – arises in connection with medium- and long-term 
receivables and liabilities (especially bonds and loans). In this 
context, particular care is taken to minimise part of the interest 
rate risk through fixed interest rate loans. 

4.1.4. Foreign currency risk
Sales transactions in the aviation industry are almost exclusively 
carried out in US dollars. All transaction and currency transla-
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tion risks are constantly monitored to hedge potential foreign 
currency risks. In order to reduce the US dollar risk, 90% of all 
purchases are currently carried out in US dollar, thus ensuring 
a so-called “natural hedging”. Derivative financial instruments 
(forward foreign exchange contracts) are used to hedge the 
remaining open items. The use of derivative financial instruments 
clearly reduces the risk of exchange rate fluctuations. The risk 
management system of the company’s treasury aims to hedge 
the expected USD-denominated cash flow for future periods.

4.2. PROJECT MANAGEMENT

FACC’s project management is responsible for implementing the 
objectives defined by the management by way of projects. This 
entails numerous risks that need to be duly considered. With 
regard to projects, distinctions are made as to whether develop-
ment responsibility has been assumed or not. Feasibility has to 
be assessed for each contract and associated risks identified, 
evaluated as well as closely monitored and analysed during the 
course of the project in order to initiate and implement appro- 
priate measures, if deemed necessary. The major risks concern 
the availability of resources of any kind (manpower, equipment, 
materials, etc.) as well as external factors, which the project team 
encounters via the company’s interfaces or via third parties. 

4.3. CUSTOMER RISK

The company pursues a strict credit policy. The creditworthi-
ness of existing customers is constantly monitored, and new 
customers undergo a credit assessment. In the event of potential 
defaults, bad debt allowances for trade receivables are recog- 
nised, following in-depth assessment of the risk. 

4.4. PURCHASE AND SUPPLIER RISK

The purchasing department regularly carries out risk assess-
ments of the company’s suppliers to identify potential threats and 
risks at an early stage. This is done in order to be able to set the 
priorities for the planning and the execution of audits and support 
the decision-making process when awarding new contracts. The 
selection of new suppliers requires the involvement of the “Pro-
curement Quality Assurance” (PQA) department to make sure 
that the necessary qualifications and approvals are in place and 
that there are no identifiable risks. When new projects are laun-
ched, suppliers are subject to a mandatory first sample test to 
minimise product risk. The ongoing quality-compliant and timely 
delivery of materials and of semi-finished and finished products 
is assessed via SAP on a regular basis. This evaluation is also an 
integral part of the overall risk assessment. Deviations from the 
targeted component quality and delivery performance are syste-
matically tracked, analysed, evaluated and benchmarked against 
defined goals. Noticeable variations are reported to the Manage-
ment Board following the management reviews.

4.5. PRODUCT LIABILITY AND QUALITY RISK

The products designed and manufactured by the company are 
intended for installation in aircraft or engines. Defects or malfunc- 
tions of the manufactured products may, directly or indirectly, 
jeopardise the property, health or life of third parties. Long-term 
safety is therefore a top priority. The company is not in a position 
to reduce or exclude its liability towards customers, consumers 
or third parties by way of sales agreements. Each product 
developed and/or manufactured in-house, which is supposed to 
leave the company, is therefore subject to thorough scrutiny with 
regard to its quality and functioality.

As to projects, for which FACC bears development responsi-
bility, a higher risk exists due to the possibility of construction 
errors. This can, however, be effectively minimised by acting 
systematically. Regular controls at all stages of development are 
intended to mitigate risks early on. Besides, FACC operates an 
archive system with regard to quality records, which are either 
contractually stipulated or go beyond contractual obligations 
on a case-by-case basis. This is to demonstrate that products 
were manufactured and services rendered according to defined 
criteria, while keeping in line with the guidelines approved by 
both customers and the aviation authority/authorities.

Despite the product liability risk being appropriately hedged, the 
occurrence of any possible quality problems may negatively 
affect the company’s assets and liabilities, financial position and 
profit and loss.

5. RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT AND
INNOVATION 

FACC is committed to constantly investing in research and de-
velopment with a view to consolidating the company’s relation- 
ships with its customers, while opening up new business fields. 
The main focus lies on proprietary developments, which allow 
the company to use the expertise acquired in this way for both 
existing and future customers. 

In the 2015/16 financial year, FACC invested EUR 2.3 million 
or 0.4% of total revenue in the research and evaluation of new 
prototypes and production processes. The wide array of R&D 
activities ranged from applied fundamental research based on 
bench scale testing through to the development of airworthy 
prototypes and pilot series. 

From a company’s perspective, active research represents a 
basic prerequisite for safeguarding FACC’s leading position as 
a dependable development partner and system supplier for its 
customers. Since FACC is often required to work with propri- 
etary customer patents and processes, proprietary developments 
help retain contracts and open up new business fields. With 
the help of a strong network of customers, subcontractors and
scientific partners, FACC develops new technologies to be 
applied in future serial production contracts.

From a developmental perspective, the year under review 
achieved very positive results. The winglet developed by FACC for 
the Airbus A350 programme passed final testing. In the Engines 
segment, a new procedure for protecting components against fire 
was developed, which is now ready for series production and is 
currently being included in the company’s production process. 
The development of new prototypes with a widely extended 
range of functions was also continued in the year under review. 

At present, the company’s long-term development objectives 
increasingly focus on automation and the improvement of pro-
duction processes. In the year under review, new manufacturing 
processes for high-production volumes were developed, which 
will continue to guarantee a high capacity utilisation of existing 
production plants moving forward. Besides, within the framework 
of an Industry 4.0 initiative, the research & development team is 
working jointly with the production planning and manufacturing 
units on a virtual factory concept aimed at optimising material 
flows and further reducing production times.
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5.1. PATENTS & PRIZES

FACC strives for the highest degree of independence possible in 
its process portfolio with a view to safeguarding its technological 
leadership in the composite area. At the same time, the company 
seeks to gradually expand its component portfolio to tap into 
new sales opportunities. Both growth areas are flanked by an 
extended patent strategy, whose main objective is to guarantee 
maximum protection of intellectual property. 

Over the past year, a total of nine patent families were registered, 
which included – among others – new manufacturing technolo-
gies, a new breed of interior components with a special focus 
on acoustic and heat insulation as well as sound-absorbing and 
fire-resistant engine components. The R&D team won the Innov- 
ation Prize of the State of Upper Austria for the active winglets.

5.2. OUTLOOK

Despite challenging framework conditions, FACC will continue its 
technology offensive in the 2016/17 financial year. The cross-div- 
isional links between the engineering and product development 
units in all the divisions will be further strengthened through orga-
nisational changes and fine-tuning measures. At the same time, 
annual coordination activities with regard to technological agree-
ments with key customers, which were started in the past year, 
will be further intensified moving forward. 

6. EMPLOYEES

Despite rising revenues, the number of employees was slightly 
reduced in the year under review. As of 29 February 2016, total 
headcount amounted to 3,062 employees (FTE). The number of 
white collars was reduced by 17.1% due to lower development 
activities, whereas the number of blue collars in the production 
area was increased by 9%.

In Austria, a total of 2,786 FTE were working for the company 
as of 29 February 2016. This corresponds to 90% of the entire 
workforce. 

In order to increase the company’s attractiveness as an employ- 
er as well as improve staff retention, FACC also continued to 
consistently implement its extensive employer-branding strategy 
in the year under review. Since the 2014/15 financial year, the 
company has made extensive use of social media platforms to 
increase its attractiveness as an employer. As a special ack-
nowledgement of the company’s consistent implementation of its 
employer-branding strategy, FACC won silver at the “European 
Change Communication Awards” in November 2015.

As in previous years, further education and vocational training for 
staff members were a focus of personnel management measures 
in the year under review. In particular, a special emphasis was 
placed on the development of employees’ management skills. 
Therefore, extensive management training programmes were 
implemented within the scope of the FACC Academy, which bun- 
dles all Group’s vocational training measures under the same roof.

In addition to leadership training, the further education of new 
staff members has always been a top priority at FACC with the 
objective of guaranteeing that employees’ skills and qualifications 
meet the high requirements of the aviation industry. A total of 664 
training courses with 7,200 participants were held in the 2015/16 
financial year. 

Apart from specialist training, FACC regards the further de-
velopment and strengthening of a corporate culture as crucial 
to corporate success. With a view to anchoring FACC’s core 
values such as “performance”, “success”, “appreciation” and 
“team spirit” within the company in the long term, the FACC 
Leonardo Award was presented in the year under review for 
the second year in a row, after its premiere in the previous year. 
This prize rewards outstanding team achievements aimed at 
implementing the company’s corporate values. Following a multi- 
level selection process, this prize was awarded once again in 
December 2015. Thanks to the development and introduction 
of a procedure tailored to FACC’s specific requirements aimed at 
constantly monitoring ongoing productivity increases, efficiency 
improvements could be implemented in a timely manner and on 
a project-by-project basis.

Last but not least, special emphasis continues to be placed 
on apprentice training at FACC. A total of 46 apprentices were 
working for the company in the 2015/16 financial year. The high 
quality of FACC’s apprentice training was also confirmed by the 
excellent results achieved by the company’s apprentices in the 
apprentice competition organised by the Chamber of Commerce 
of Upper Austria for commercial and technical professions in 
2015. Out of 736 apprentices from 91 Upper-Austrian com- 
panies, including voestalpine and Lenzing, members of the 
FACC Future Teams secured top positions in the categories “pla-
stics technology”, “designer and tool-making technology” and 
“women in engineering”.

Last but not least, since January 2015, FACC has been entitled 
to bear the Austrian national coat of arms as a state-approved 
training enterprise.

7. ENVIRONMENT

Since FACC was founded in 1989, the development of the com-
pany has been marked by continued growth, which significantly 
gathered momentum between 2011 and 2015. However, the 
consumption of both energy and resources did not match this 
trend. Thanks to a wide range of measures, the development of 
energy consumption at FACC has been considerably flatter than 
the overall operating performance of the company. In concrete 
terms, energy efficiency at FACC plants increased at an annual 
rate of 10% between 2010 and 2014 and by 7% in 2015. These 
are peak values, which have been achieved through a set of 
measures such as energy monitoring, the deployment of control 
technology and the central monitoring of building technology.

The amount of waste generated by a company is a key indicator 
for the quality of production processes as it shows how efficiently 
available raw materials are ultimately used. Thus, the overriding 
guiding principle at FACC is waste avoidance. The second pillar 
in the company’s waste management is represented by recycling 
and recovery. Currently, every piece of waste at FACC undergoes 
thorough examination in a seamless manner to check the poten-
tial recyclability of materials. While in 2010 the proportion of re- 
cyclable waste at FACC amounted to 12%, in 2015 almost 49% 
of residual material could be recycled. Nowadays, polystyrene, 
plastic films, cardboard packaging, tools, iron and aluminium are 
100% sold and subsequently recycled. The same applies to waste 
wood, which can be recycled as raw material to a great extent. 

8. REPORT ON BRANCHES 

FACC AG does not operate any branches.
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9. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

No material events have occurred after the balance sheet date.

10. DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SEC. 243A 
OF THE AUSTRIAN COMMERCIAL CODE (UGB)

10.1. REPORT ON THE KEY FEATURES OF THE GROUP’S 
INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS 
WITH REGARD TO ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES

Pursuant to Sec. 243a Para. 2 of the Austrian Commercial Code 
(UGB), FACC AG is required to describe the key features of the 
internal control and risk management system with regard to the 
accounting process. Pursuant to Sec. 82 of the Austrian Stock 
Corporations Act (AktG), the Management Board of FACC AG 
has to ensure the establishment of an accounting and internal 
control system that complies with the company’s requirements. 
Thus, the Management Board of FACC AG bears full responsibil- 
ity for the implementation of an adequate internal control and risk 
management system with regard to the accounting process. 

The key features of the risk management and internal control 
systems are laid down in the FACC AG’s risk management 
manual. This manual describes and identifies key finance and 
controlling processes and their associated risks.

The accounting-related internal control system is designed to 
guarantee timely, uniform and correct recording of all business 
processes and transactions, while ensuring that well-founded 
statements about the company’s current business situation can 
be made at all times.  

A comprehensive set of measures and rules includes, amongst 
others, the separation of functions, the dual control principle, 
rules governing authorised signatories, joint signatory powers 
for authorising payments only, which are restricted to a small 
number of persons, as well as system-supported checks by the 
software in use (SAP).

In connection with the “Fake President Incident“, FACC AG’s 
Management Board put countermeasures in place as soon as 
the fraud was discovered. In addition to evaluating possible 
compensation claims within the framework of the company’s 
D&O insurance, the focus mainly lay on the review of established 
procedures and methods associated with the company’s risk 
management process and the internal control system. 

For more than ten years, FACC has used SAP in almost all areas 
across the company. The regularity of the SAP systems has been 
achieved in all relevant business processes. 

In the course of monthly reporting to the Management Board 
and the second-level management, a comparison is made be- 
tween actual and budgeted figures. During its quarterly meetings, 
the Supervisory Board of FACC AG is informed about business 
performance and forecasts regarding the Group’s further course 
of business. In its meetings, the Audit Committee dealt, amongst 
others, with topics such as the internal control system, risk man- 
agement and measures to mitigate internal control risks. 

Within the framework of the budgeting process, budget costs 
are planned for each individual cost centre. Every cost centre 
manager is responsible for keeping in line with the budgeted 
costs and planned investments. All investment plans are subject 
to prior approval by the Management Board. Investments running 

over budget are also subject to prior approval by the Supervisory 
Board.

With regard to IT security, measures relating to authorisation 
concepts, separation of functions and system security were 
designed and implemented.

10.2. DISCLOSURES ON CAPITAL, SHARE, VOTING, AND 
CONTROL RIGHTS AS WELL AS ASSOCIATED OBLIGATIONS

FACC AG’s share capital amounted to EUR 45,790,000 as of 
29 February 2016 and is divided into 45,790,000 no-par value 
bearer shares. All the company’s shares have been admitted 
to trading on the Prime Market segment of the Vienna Stock 
Exchange. 

Every FACC AG’s share entitles the bearer to one vote at the 
Annual General Meeting. 

As of 29 February 2016, FACC International Company Ltd. (Hong 
Kong) held, either directly or indirectly, 55.5% of the shares 
of FACC AG. As of the balance sheet date 29 February 2016, 
the company’s Management Board was unaware of any other 
shareholders, who held more than 10% of the company’s share 
capital. 

45.5% of FACC shares represent free float.

There are no shares with special control rights. 

No employee participation programme is currently in place at 
FACC AG, which shall not entitle the bearers of FACC AG’s 
shares to exercise their voting rights directly. 

10.3. AUTHORISED CAPITAL 

At the extraordinary general meeting on 23 June 2014, au-
thorised capital was approved. Accordingly, the Management 
Board is authorised, subject to prior approval by the Supervisory 
Board and within five years of the date on which the author- 
ised capital was entered in the commercial register, to increase 
the company’s share capital by up to a nominal figure of EUR 
19,895,000.00 by issuing up to 19,895,000 new shares against 
contributions in cash or in kind. New shares can also be issued 
excluding shareholders’ subscription rights. 

At the extraordinary general meeting on 23 June 2014, author- 
ised capital was approved. Accordingly, the Management Board 
is authorised, subject to prior approval by the Supervisory Board 
and within five years of the date on which the authorised capital 
was entered in the commercial register, to increase the share 
capital by up to a nominal figure of EUR 3,000,000.00 by issuing 
up to 3,000,000 new shares in order to grant share options to 
employees, executives and members of the Management Board 
of the company or of one of its affiliated companies. New shares 
can also be issued excluding shareholders’ subscription rights.

10.4. CONDITIONAL CAPITAL 

At the extraordinary general meeting on 23 June 2014, the share 
capital was conditionally increased by up to EUR 15,000,000 by 
issuing up to 15,000,000 new no-par value bearer shares (con-
ditional capital). This conditional capital serves to grant subscrip- 
tion or conversion rights to creditors of convertible bonds and to 
prepare the merger of several companies. The amount of capital 
issued and the conversion ratio are to be established in compli-
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ance with the provisions set forth in the convertible bonds. The 
issue amount of the shares shall not be less than the pro-rata 
amount of the share capital.

10.5.  LEGAL PROVISIONS FOR THE APPOINTMENT 
OF MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD 

As long as FACC International Company Ltd. (Hong Kong) holds 
a stake in FACC AG of at least 25% of the company’s share cap- 
ital, it will have the right to appoint up to one third of all Supervi-
sory Board members.  

Beyond that, the Articles of Association include no regulations 
that exceed the legal provisions for the appointment of members 
of the Management Board and Supervisory Board or the amend-
ment of the Articles of Association. 

10.6. OTHER DISCLOSURES

As of 29 February 2016, FACC AG did not hold any treasury 
shares.

FACC is unaware of any restrictions regarding the voting rights of 
FACC shares and any transfer thereof, including any restrictions 
resulting from agreements between shareholders.

No special compensation agreements exist between FACC AG 
and the members of the Management and Supervisory Board in 
the case of a public take-over bid. 

Agreements  regard ing  promissory  note  loans  inc lude 
change-of-control clauses. Lenders shall be entitled to terminate 
the agreement when:

a. the Aviation Industry Corporation of China (AVIC) holds, 
either directly or indirectly, less than 50% plus one share of the 
borrower, or

b. the Aviation Industry Corporation of China (AVIC) is not 
entitled, either directly or indirectly, to appoint the majority of 
the members of the Management or of the Supervisory Board 
of the borrowers. 

11. OUTLOOK

11.1. MARKET

The overall market environment in the aviation industry remains 
consistently positive. Once again, delivery rates were further 
increased in the year under review, whereas new orders did not 
fully match the previous year’s levels. Despite a slight easing of 
the situation, total order backlog for aircraft corresponds to a 
production workload of roughly nine years.

This growth trend is expected to continue moving forward. Ac-
cording to the market analyses of the major OEMs, passenger 
volumes will show a constant annual growth rate of roughly 5%. 
Over the next two decades, the global aircraft fleet, which currently 
amounts to 18,500 commercial aircraft (source: Airbus Global 
Market Forecast, April 2016), will more than double  to roughly 
37,500 units by 2034. At the same time, 12,400 airliners from the 
existing fleet will reach the end of their service life and be replaced 
by modern aircraft models. Based on these estimates, a total of 
31,400 new airliners will be required over the next 19 years. 

11.2. THE FACC GROUP

The products developed over the last few years are increasingly 
starting serial production. Sales volumes of the A350 projects will 
more than double over the next two to three years, becoming a 
major driver of the company’s overall business development. In 
addition to the series production of the A350 projects, current 
forecasts envisage a further increase in demand also for both the 
B787 and A320 programmes over the next year or two. 

Thanks to FACC’s balanced and modern product and customer 
portfolio, the company can profit from the general growth trend 
currently underway in almost all aircraft families. Development 
work on the large projects of the past ten to twelve years, par-
ticularly for the A380, A350, B787 aircraft models, are basically 
completed. The main focus currently lies on the optimal indus- 
trialisation of these projects as well as on ongoing improvement 
projects. 

The investments made by the FACC Group in the A350 XWB, 
B787, Legacy 450/500, Bombardier CL 350 and Global 
7000/8000 new projects are showing sustainable effects. As 
a system supplier, FACC will profit significantly from the serial 
ramp-up of these projects. In addition to increasing revenues, 
this will also ensure a high degree of capacity utilisation at the 
company’s plants. 

From a current perspective, repayment of development costs 
incurred by the company will be realised as planned. Thus, the 
accomplishment of “FACC Vision 2020” of achieving constant 
growth seems to be realistic from today’s perspective. In its plan-
ning for the current financial year, FACC assumes that revenue 
growth will be in the double digit percentage range. 

In the near future, revenues from development services will fail to 
match the levels recorded in the 2012 and 2013 financial years. 
As mentioned before, both Airbus and Boeing have decided to 
avoid major new developments in the near future and, instead, 
carry out ongoing improvements to existing aircraft, which are 
less risky in terms of technical requirements and more viable from 
a financial perspective.

Following the successful commissioning of FACC’s new site in 
Wichita (USA) and the related modification activities with regard 
to the winglets for the B737 project, valuable experience was 
acquired in the MRO area (maintenance, repair and overhaul) 
as well as in terms of direct collaboration with the airlines as 
end-consumers. Since composite materials account for an 
ever-increasing proportion of new aircraft components, the MRO 
market, and more specifically the maintenance of composite 
systems, represents a fast growing business field. Based on its 
extensive experience in the development and manufacture of 
composite systems, moving forward, FACC is pursuing the ultim- 
ate objective of increasingly providing repair and maintenance 
services to airlines in addition to its core business. 

As part of the “FACC Vision 2020”, a number of dedicated 
“Operational Excellence” projects were launched with a view to 
improving efficiency and boosting profitability. These projects aim 
to increase the degree of automation in production, raise produc-
tivity and reduce products’ processing costs as well as to boost 
margins by outsourcing the production of simple composite 
parts. These projects are having an impact. The increasing au-
tomation of processes will also take centre stage in the 2016/17 
financial year with a view to further enhancing FACC’s overall ef-
ficiency. The main objective of these activities will continue to be 
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a general increase in the overall productivity of 7 to 10% depen-
ding on the respective product mix.

The company will also continue to press ahead with outsourcing 
defined product families to strategic supply chain partners in 
growth markets (UAE, India and China). Thanks to the qualifica-
tion of the plant, planned by FACC in China in the 2014 financial 
year, the outsourcing of significant product families from the Inter- 
iors, Engine Composites as well as Aerostructures segments will 
be further stepped up. Along with these relocations, the company 
also plans to further decrease US dollar exposure, release FACC 
production space for the manufacturing of high-tech products 
and further expand its global manufacturing network.

Moving forward, the FACC Group will continue to strengthen its 
business activities, ranging from development, manufacturing th-
rough to global supply chain management, while further expand- 
ing its role as a preferred partner of the aviation industry. The 
implementation of the “FACC Vision 2020” strategy, especially 
when it comes to consolidating and expanding the company’s 
standing as a Tier 1 supplier of customers such as Airbus, 
Boeing, Bombardier, Embraer and all renowned engine manufac-
turers, is and will continue to be a top priority. 

Ried im Innkreis, 20 May 2016

Walter Stephan m. p.
Chairman of the Management Board

Yongsheng Wang
Member of the Management Board

Robert Machtlinger m. p.
Member of the Management Board
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Note February 28,

2015 
February 29, 

2016 

EUR’000 EUR’000

ASSETS 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets 5 151,659 166,067
Property, plant and equipment 6 158,251 168,748
Other non-current financial assets 7 469 451
Non-current receivables 9 24,597 30,232
Deferred tax assets 30 – 241

334,976 365,739

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 8 98,858 107,823
Trade receivables 9 91,707 106,384
Receivables from construction contracts 9 28,920 28,633
Other receivables and deferred items 9 17,507 15,337
Receivables from related companies 9 35,322 19,060
Derivative financial instruments 14 – –
Cash and cash equivalents 10 110,955 56,215

383,269 333,451
TOTAL ASSETS 718,245 699,190

EQUITY
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Share capital 11 45,790 45,790
Capital reserve 11   220,535 221,459
Currency translation reserve 11 (170) (250)
Other reserves 11 (24,014) (13,476)
Retained earnings   72,759 50,842

314,900 304,365
Non-controlling interests 8 17
TOTAL EQUITY 314,908 304,381

LIABILITIES 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Promissory note loans 12 – 42,000
Bonds 12 89,067 89,242
Other financial liabilities 13 66,268 75,213
Derivative financial instruments 14 10,340 –
Investment grants 15 11,223 12,385
Employee benefit obligations 16 10,926 10,759
Deferred taxes 30 4,589 –

192,413 229,600

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 17 72,087 72,679
Payables to related companies 18 – 425
Other liabilities and deferred income 18 25,007 25,526
Other financial liabilities 13 13,173 21,634
Promissory note loans 12 45,000 –
Derivative financial instruments 14 48,199  33,476
Other provisions 19 6,642 10,393
Investment grants 15 768 904
Income tax liabilities 49 171

210,924 165,209
TOTAL LIABILITIES 403,337 394,809
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 718,245 699,190

The Notes on pages 64 to 105 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of  
Comprehensive Income 

Note 2014/15 2015/16

EUR’000 EUR’000

REVENUE 4 528,914 587,541
Changes in inventories 20 2,755 4,424
Own work capitalised 21   18,762 18,784
Cost of materials and purchased services  22 (330,193) (373,894)
Staff costs 23 (162,259) (158,510)
Depreciation and amortisation 25 (23,299) (25,911)
Other operating income and expenses 26 (39,192) (75,822)
Earnings before interest, taxes and fair value measurement
of derivative financial instruments (4,512) (23,388)

Finance costs 27 (10,280) (12,562)
Interest income from financial instruments 28   623 444
Fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments 29   (387) 5,242
Loss before taxes (14,557) (30,264)

Income taxes  30 4,976 8,357
Loss after taxes (9,581) (21,908)

ITEMS SUBSEQUENTLY RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS
Currency translation differences from consolidation (43) (78)
Fair value measurement of securities (net of tax)   31 (13)
Cash flow hedges (net of tax) 11 (19,779) 10,052

ITEMS SUBSEQUENTLY NOT RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS
Revaluation effects of pensions and termination benefits (net of tax) 16 (2,832) 499
Other comprehensive loss/income for the year  (22,623) 10,460

Total comprehensive loss for the year (32,204) (11,448)

LOSS AFTER TAXES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 
Equity holders of the parent (9,594) (21,917)
Non-controlling equity holders 13 9

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the parent (32,217) (11,457)
Non-controlling equity holders 13 9

Earnings per share with regard to loss after taxes attributable
to the equity holders of the parent during the year (in EUR per share)

Basic 35 (0.22) (0.48)

The Notes on pages 64 to 105 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2014/15 2015/16 

EUR’000 EUR’000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Earnings before interest, taxes and fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments (4,512) (23,388)
Fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments1 (387) 5,242

(4.899) (18,146)

Plus/minus 
Release of/accrual of investment grants 1,378 1,332
Depreciation and amortisation 23,299 25,911
Losses/(gains) on disposal of non-current assets 783 –
Changes in financial instruments1 52,176 (25,063)
Cash flow hedges (26,384) 13,403
Change in non-current receivables (7,921) (5,634)
Change in employee benefit obligations, non-current 4,646 (167)
Revaluation effects of pensions and termination benefits (3,776) 665
Deconsolidation effects – (2,334)
Valuation effects from currency translation differences (9,533) (1,534)

29,769 (11,567)

Changes in net current assets
Change in inventories (17,809) (9,069)
Changes in receivables and deferred items (14,361) 3.223
Change in trade payables 16,393 730
Change in current provisions (3,834) 5,627
Change in other current liabilities 1,332 1,307
Cash generated from operations 11,490 (9,749)
Interest received 623 444
Tax paid (4,755) (2)
Net cash generated from operating activities 7,358 (9,308)

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (42,796) (26,296)
Purchase of intangible assets (4,745) (586)
Payments for addition to development costs (30,274) (23,983)
Net cash used in investing activities (77,815) (50,865)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from financial loans and bonds 15,203 26,190
Repayments of financial loans and bonds (3,433) (9,722)
Payments of interest on financial loans and bonds (10,280) (12,562)
Equity contribution 138,377 –
Payment of dividend (19,000) –
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 120,867 3,906

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 50,410 (56,266)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 51,012 110,955
Change resulting from consolidation effects (deconsolidation) – (8)
Valuation effects from currency translation differences 9,533 1,534
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 110,955 56,215

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

1 Includes changes in financial instruments not considered part of net current assets. 

The Notes on pages 64 to 105 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Available-for-
sale securities

Hedging
reserve

Reserve
IAS 19

Retained
earnings

Equity attribut- 
able to equity 
holders of the 

parent
Non-controlling 

interests Total equity

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

(45) – (1,389) 101,353 224.833 (5) 224,828
– – – (9,594) (9,594) 13 (9,581)

– – – – (43) – (43)
31 – – – 31 – 31

– – (2,832) – (2,832) – (2,832)
– (19,779) – – (19,779) – (19,779)

31 (19,779) (2,832) – (22,623) – (22,623)
31 (19,779) (2,832) (9,594) (32,217) 13 (32,204)

– – – – – – –
– – – (19,000) (19,000) – (19,000)
– – – – – – –
– – – – – – –
– – – – – – –
– – – – 141,284 – 141,284

(14) (19,779) (4,221) 72,759 314,900 8 314,908

Available-for-
sale securities

Hedging
reserve

Reserve
IAS 19

Retained
earnings

Equity attribut- 
able to equity 
holders of the 

parent
Non-controlling 

interests Total equity

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

(14) (19,779) (4,221) 72,759 314,900 8 314,908
– – – (21,917) (21,917) 9 (21,908)

– – – – (80) – (80)
(13) – – – (13) – (13)

– – 499 – 499 – 499
– 10,052 – – 10,052 – 10,052

(13) 10,052 499 – 10,458 – 10,458
(13) 10,052 499 (21,917) (11,459) 9 (11,450)

– – – – – – –
– – – – – – –
– – – – – – –
– – – – 924 – 924
– – – – – – –
– – – – – – –

(27) (9,727) (3,722) 50,842 304,365 17 304,381

Share capital
Capital
reserve 

Currency
translation

reserve

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Balance as at March 1, 2014 35 125,006 (127)
Loss after taxes – – –
Other comprehensive loss
Currency translation differences from consolidation – – (43)
Fair value measurement of securities (net of tax) – – –
Revaluation effects of pension and termination benefits (net of tax) – – –
Cash flow hedges (net of tax) – – –
Total other comprehensive loss – – (43)
Total comprehensive loss – – (43)
Reclassification from capital reserve to retained earnings – – –
Dividends paid – – –
Initial consolidation of subsidiaries – – –
Other changes – – –
Share capital increase from capital reserve 29,965 (29,965) –
Capital increase from IPO 15,790 125,494 –
Balance as at February 28, 2015 45,790 220,535 (170)

Share capital
Capital
reserve 

Currency
translation 

reserve

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Balance as at March 1, 2015 45,790 220,535 (170)
Loss after taxes – – –
Other comprehensive loss
Currency translation differences from consolidation – – (80)
Fair value measurement of securities (net of tax) – – –
Revaluation effects of pension and termination benefits (net of tax) – – –
Cash flow hedges (net of tax) – – –
Total other comprehensive loss – – (80)
Total comprehensive loss – – (80)
Reclassification from capital reserve to retained earnings – – –
Dividends paid – – –
Initial consolidation of subsidiaries – – –
Other changes – 924 –
Share capital increase from capital reserve – – –
Capital increase from IPO – – –
Balance as at February 29, 2016 45,790 221m,459 (250)

Fiscal year 2014/15

Fiscal year 2015/16

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

The Notes on pages 64 to 105 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Available-for-
sale securities

Hedging
reserve

Reserve
IAS 19

Retained
earnings

Equity attribut- 
able to equity 
holders of the 

parent
Non-controlling 

interests Total equity

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

(45) – (1,389) 101,353 224.833 (5) 224,828
– – – (9,594) (9,594) 13 (9,581)

– – – – (43) – (43)
31 – – – 31 – 31

– – (2,832) – (2,832) – (2,832)
– (19,779) – – (19,779) – (19,779)

31 (19,779) (2,832) – (22,623) – (22,623)
31 (19,779) (2,832) (9,594) (32,217) 13 (32,204)

– – – – – – –
– – – (19,000) (19,000) – (19,000)
– – – – – – –
– – – – – – –
– – – – – – –
– – – – 141,284 – 141,284

(14) (19,779) (4,221) 72,759 314,900 8 314,908

Available-for-
sale securities

Hedging
reserve

Reserve
IAS 19

Retained
earnings

Equity attribut- 
able to equity 
holders of the 

parent
Non-controlling 

interests Total equity

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

(14) (19,779) (4,221) 72,759 314,900 8 314,908
– – – (21,917) (21,917) 9 (21,908)

– – – – (80) – (80)
(13) – – – (13) – (13)

– – 499 – 499 – 499
– 10,052 – – 10,052 – 10,052

(13) 10,052 499 – 10,458 – 10,458
(13) 10,052 499 (21,917) (11,459) 9 (11,450)

– – – – – – –
– – – – – – –
– – – – – – –
– – – – 924 – 924
– – – – – – –
– – – – – – –

(27) (9,727) (3,722) 50,842 304,365 17 304,381

Other reserves

Other reserves

Share capital
Capital
reserve 

Currency
translation

reserve

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Balance as at March 1, 2014 35 125,006 (127)
Loss after taxes – – –
Other comprehensive loss
Currency translation differences from consolidation – – (43)
Fair value measurement of securities (net of tax) – – –
Revaluation effects of pension and termination benefits (net of tax) – – –
Cash flow hedges (net of tax) – – –
Total other comprehensive loss – – (43)
Total comprehensive loss – – (43)
Reclassification from capital reserve to retained earnings – – –
Dividends paid – – –
Initial consolidation of subsidiaries – – –
Other changes – – –
Share capital increase from capital reserve 29,965 (29,965) –
Capital increase from IPO 15,790 125,494 –
Balance as at February 28, 2015 45,790 220,535 (170)

Share capital
Capital
reserve 

Currency
translation 

reserve

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Balance as at March 1, 2015 45,790 220,535 (170)
Loss after taxes – – –
Other comprehensive loss
Currency translation differences from consolidation – – (80)
Fair value measurement of securities (net of tax) – – –
Revaluation effects of pension and termination benefits (net of tax) – – –
Cash flow hedges (net of tax) – – –
Total other comprehensive loss – – (80)
Total comprehensive loss – – (80)
Reclassification from capital reserve to retained earnings – – –
Dividends paid – – –
Initial consolidation of subsidiaries – – –
Other changes – 924 –
Share capital increase from capital reserve – – –
Capital increase from IPO – – –
Balance as at February 29, 2016 45,790 221m,459 (250)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 
29 FEBRUARY 2016

1 GENERAL

In the following, the notes are presented for the two reporting 
periods ended 28 February 2015 and 29 February 2016. 
 
The FACC Group, domiciled in Ried im Innkreis, is a group incor-
porated in Austria for the development, production and servicing 
of aircraft components. The principal activities of the FACC Group 
are the manufacturing of structural components, such as engine 
cowlings, wing claddings or control surfaces, as well as interiors 
for modern commercial aircraft. The components are manufac-
tured using mainly composites. In the components made of such 
composites, the Group also integrates metallic components of 
titanium, high-alloy steel and other metals, and supplies these 
components to the aircraft final assembly lines ready for fitting.

Since 25 June 2014 FACC AG has been listed on the Vienna 
Stock Exchange in the Prime Market segment (official trading).

Except for the deconsolidation of the previously fully consolidated 
subsidiary ITS GmbH,  there has been no change in the scope of 
consolidation of the FACC Group as at 29 February 2016 com-
pared to the scope of consolidation of the consolidated financial 
statements as at 28 February 2015. 

FACC AG is included in the scope of consolidation of FACC Inter-
national Company Ltd. with its office in Hong Kong (Room 2302, 
23rd Floor, Caroline Centre Lee Gardens Two, 28 Yun Ping Road, 
HKG), company register number 1394811.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The principle accounting policies applied in the preparation of 
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These 
policies have been consistently applied to all the reporting periods 
presented.
 
(a) Basis of preparation 
The consolidated financial statements as at 29 February 2016 
have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the interpretations of the IFRS 
Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) as adopted by the European 
Union and the statutory provisions of Section 245a of the Austrian 
Commercial Code (UGB).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention, with the exception of financial 
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instru-
ments) that were measured at fair value. Assets and liabilities are 
categorised either as current or non-current assets and liabilities, 
with their terms being disclosed in the notes to the consolidated 
financial statements. The consolidated statement of comprehen- 
sive income is prepared using the total expenditure format.
 
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in con-
formity with IFRS requires the use of accounting estimates. It also 
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process 
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving 
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where as-
sumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated finan-
cial statements are disclosed in Note 2(b). 

For the purpose of clarity, amounts are rounded and – where 
stated – reported in euro thousand.

New and amended standards that have been applied for the first 
time in the fiscal year
The following new and/or amended standards and interpretations 
have been adopted for the first time in the fiscal year 2015/16 but 
had no material impact on the consolidated financial statements:

Standards/interpretations
Annual improvements to IFRS 2011–2013
Effective date in the EU
1 January 2015
Endorsement status 
Endorsed in December 2014

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published stan-
dards which are not yet effective and have not been applied by 
the Group in preparing these consolidated financial statements

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, 
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial 
liabilities. The complete version of IFRS 9, developed in several 
phases, was issued in July 2014 by the IASB. It replaces the 
parts of IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and meas- 
urement’, that relate to the classification and measurement of 
financial instruments. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed 
measurement model and establishes three primary measure-
ment categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value 
through OCI and fair value through profit or loss. The classification 
depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash 
flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity 
instruments are required to be measured at fair value through 
profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to pre-
sent changes in fair value in OCI. There is now a new expected 
credit loss model that replaces the incurred loss model used in 
IAS 39. With regard to the classification and measurement of fi-
nancial liabilities, IFRS 9 only introduces amendments for liabilities 
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Under IFRS 9, 
changes in own credit risk with regard to these liabilities are now 
to be recognised in other comprehensive income. Further, IFRS 
9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing 
the bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an economic 
relationship between the hedged item and hedging instrument 
and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same as the one manage-
ment actually uses for risk management purposes. Concurrent 
documentation is still required but is different to that currently 
prepared under IAS 39. According to the IASB, IFRS 9 is effective 
for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The 
standard has not yet been endorsed by the European Union. The 
Group is currently assessing the full impact of IFRS 9. From a 
current perspective, the Group estimates that IFRS 9 will primarily 
affect the categorisation of financial assets as well as their meas- 
urement. The transition to the expected credit loss model will result 
in a tendency to record value adjustments of receivables earlier. 
IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, which has been 
changed due to IFRS 9, will lead to changes in and/or extensions 
to disclosures in the notes.

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, deals with 
revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting use-
ful information to users of financial statements about the nature, 
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue. Under IFRS 15, 
revenue is to be recognised when a customer obtains control of 
a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use and 
obtain the benefits from the good or service. The new standard 

Notes
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on revenue recognition replaces the previous provisions of IAS 
18, ‘Revenue’, and IAS 11, ‘Construction contracts’, and related 
interpretations. The IASB determined the standard to be effective 
for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 
15 has not yet been endorsed by the European Union. The FACC 
Group is currently assessing the full impact of IFRS 15. An adjust-
ment of internal processes in relation to the first-time adoption of 
IFRS 15 is to be expected. Furthermore, changes in and/or exten-
sions to disclosures in the notes with regard to revenue recogni- 
tion will have to be made.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ specifies how to recognise, measure and present 
leases as well as how to disclose leases in the notes. IFRS 16 
provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to 
recognise rights of use arising from the lease on the assets side 
as well as lease obligations on the liabilities side of the statement 
of financial position. Simplified rules apply to leases with terms 
of less than twelve months as well as for low-value assets. The 
approach to lessor accounting remains substantially unchanged 
under IFRS 16. The FACC Group is currently assessing the im-
pact of IFRS 16 on the Group. From a current perspective, it is 
expected that IFRS 16 will lead to a more detailed accounting of 
rights of use and lease obligations arising from the leases thus far 
classified as operating leases. Furthermore, extended disclosures 
in the notes in accordance with the requirements under IFRS 16 
will have to be made.

There are no other standards or interpretations that are not yet 
effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on 
the Group.

(b) Use of assumptions and estimates 
Assumptions and estimates were made in the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements which had an effect on the 
amount of the reported assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
These may lead to significant adjustments to assets and liabilities 
in subsequent fiscal years. 
 
Assumptions and estimates are continually evaluated and are 
based on historical experience and other factors, including ex-
pectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates 
may not necessarily be equal to the actual results. The estimates 
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next fiscal year are discussed below.

(i) Employee benefit obligations 
Employee benefit obligations mainly comprise pension obligations 
and provisions for termination benefits. Employee benefit obliga-
tions are calculated based on the present value of the estimated 
future cash outflows using interest rates determined by refer- 
ence to market yields at the end of the reporting period based on 
high-quality corporate bonds with the same currency and a term 
corresponding to the estimated term of benefit obligations. 
 
Management appointed independent actuaries to carry out a full 
valuation to determine the expected employee benefit obligations 
that are required to be disclosed and recognised in the financial 
statements in accordance with the IFRS requirements. 
 
The actuaries use assumptions and estimates and evaluate and 
update these assumptions at least on an annual basis. Judge-
ment is required in establishing the principal actuarial assump-
tions to determine the present value of defined benefit obligations 
and service costs. Changes to the principal actuarial assumptions 

can significantly affect the present value of plan obligations and 
service costs in future periods. The discount rate is a potential 
volatile parameter. Increasing the discount rate by 0.25 percentage 
points would result in a decrease in the present value of defined 
benefit obligations of 144 EURk and decrease the service cost by 
9 EURk. Decreasing the discount rate by 0.25 percentage points 
would result in an increase in the defined benefit obligations of 
153 EURk and increase the service cost by 9 EURk. Reference is 
also made to Note 16.

(ii) Non-current receivables
In the reporting period, an externally controlled fraud incident 
(“Fake President Incident”) resulted in an illegal outflow of the 
Group’s liquid funds in the amount of 52,847 EURk. Immediately 
adopted measures led to the freezing of 10,860 EURk in receiv- 
ing accounts. This amount has been recognised as non-current 
receivable, as the subsidiary FACC Operations GmbH considers 
itself to be the lawful owner of the money and – based on a legal 
opinion obtained – assumes that the money will be reimbursed. It 
is expected that the amounts frozen in receiving accounts will not 
be reimbursed in the short term.

(iii) Scheduled amortisation of development costs 
The calculation for amortisation of capitalised development costs 
is based on the number of shipsets to be supplied. This number 
of shipsets is an assumption based on a defined assessment pro-
cedure (refer to Note 2(d)(iii) “Research and development costs”). 
Increasing the estimated number of shipsets by 10% would result 
in a decrease in amortisation of 501 EURk (28 February 2015) and 
613 EURk (29 February 2016). Decreasing the estimated number 
of shipsets by 10% would result in an increase in amortisation of 
613 EURk (28 February 2015) and 751 EURk (29 February 2016). 

(iv) Receivables from construction contracts
Under IAS 11, a construction contract is a contract specifically 
negotiated for the construction (development) of an asset. Con- 
tract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which 
they are incurred. As the outcome of a construction contract can 
frequently not be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recog-
nised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely 
to be recoverable from the customer. Based on this assessment, 
partial profit realisation is not applied by management. 

(v) Impairment assessment of goodwill and other
non-current assets
Assumptions are required in the assessment of impairment, par-
ticularly when assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that 
may indicate that the respective assets may not be recoverable; 
(2) whether the carrying amount of an asset can be achieved by 
the recoverable amount based on the present value of future cash 
flows; and (3) whether there are appropriate key assumptions to 
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether 
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate 
rate. 
 
Should the discount rate change by +50 basis points at the end 
of the reporting period, an additional impairment adjustment 
would not be required. As discount rate, the Group uses the 
weighted average cost of capital (WACC), which was 7.55% as at 
29 February 2016 and 8.2% as at 28 February 2015.

Should the EUR/USD exchange rate used in the measurement 
model change by +/–5 cents, no impairment would be re- 
quired in the Engines & Nacelles and Aerostructures divisions; an  
impairment in the amount of 13,208 EURk would be required 
in the Interiors division. The EUR/USD exchange rates used in 
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the measurement model ranged between 1.2250 EUR/USD and 
1.1800 EUR/USD in the planning periods. Should the expected 
average EBIT margin change by 2.0%, no impairment would be 
required in the Engines & Nacelles and Aerostructures divisions; 
an impairment in the amount of 28,926 EURk would be required 
in the Interiors division. Reference is also made to Note 33.
 
(vi) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
The useful life of the Group’s property, plant and equipment is 
defined as the period over which it is expected to be available for 
use by the Group. The estimation of the useful life is a matter of 
judgement based on management’s experience. Periodic reviews 
by management could result in a change in depreciable lives and 
therefore affect the depreciation expense in future periods. 

(vii) Derivative financial instruments 
All derivatives are recognised at their fair value. Gains and losses 
resulting from changes in fair value are accounted for depending 
on the use of the derivatives and whether they are designated 
and qualify for hedge accounting under IAS 39. Where deriva-
tive financial instruments entered into by the Group qualify for 
cash flow hedge accounting, the movement in their fair value is 
recorded under the caption of hedging reserve in equity. Where 
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group do not 
qualify for hedge accounting, or hedge accounting is not applied, 
the movement in their fair value is recorded in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income through profit or loss. The 
sensitivity analysis with regard to derivative financial instruments is 
presented in Note 3(b)(i) below.

(c) Consolidation 
The financial statements of subsidiaries included in the consoli- 
dated financial statements were prepared as at the end of the 
reporting period applicable throughout the Group, i.e. as at 
28 February 2015 and 29 February 2016, and in accordance with 
IFRS as adopted by the EU. The financial statements of FACC 
AG and its subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial 
statements taking into account the uniform recognition and mea-
surement principles of the Group.
 
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The 
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has 
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and 
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the 
entity. 
  
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control 
is transferred to the Group. Subsidiaries are de-consolidated as at 
the date that control ceases. The consolidated statement of com-
prehensive income includes revenue and expenses up to the date 
of de-consolidation. 

Under full consolidation, all Group companies are included in the 
consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(ii) Changes in the consolidated group
Except for the deconsolidation of the previously fully consoli-
dated subsidiary ITS GmbH, there has been no change in the 
consolidated group of the FACC Group as at 29 February 2016 
compared to the consolidated group of the consolidated finan-
cial statements as at 28 February 2015. Insolvency proceedings 
regarding the assets of ITS GmbH were initiated in the second 
quarter of 2015, resulting in the loss of control and deconsoli-
dation as at 31 August 2015. ITS GmbH is an engineering office 
domiciled in Steinebach, Germany (most recent number of staff: 
19). The deconsolidation of ITS GmbH does not have a material 
impact on the Group’s assets and liabilities, financial situation 
and results of operations.
 
(iii) Consolidation methods 
The Group applies the acquisition method to account for busi-
ness combinations. The consideration transferred for acquisition 
of the subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, equity 
instruments issued and the liabilities assumed or incurred at the 
date of exchange. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and 
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are 
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Ac-
quisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree 
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at 
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recog- 
nised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
 
Inter-company transactions, balances, and material unrealised in-
come and expenses on transactions between Group companies 
are eliminated. 

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed, where 
necessary, to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by 
the Group. 

Transactions with non-controlling interests are accounted for as 
equity transactions – that is, as transactions with the owners in 
their capacity as owners. The difference between the fair value 
of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the 
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equi-
ty. Gains or losses on disposals of non-controlling interests are 
also recorded in equity.

(i) Consolidated group 
The consolidated group is determined according to the principles of IFRS 10. The Group has the following subsidiaries:

Non-controlling interests with regard to the subsidiary CoLT Prüf und Test GmbH are not considered material.
Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries are fully available to the Group.

Company Place of incorporation
Issued and fully 

paid share capital
Direct 

shareholding Principal activities

FACC Operations GmbH Ried im Innkreis, Austria 127,000,000 EUR1 100%
Development & production 

of aircraft components

FACC Solutions (Canada) Inc. Montreal, Canada 10,000 CAD 100% Customer service

FACC Solutions Inc. Wichita, Kansas, USA 10,000 USD 100% Customer service

FACC Solutions s.r.o. Bratislava, Slovakia 6,639 EUR 100% Design & Engineering

FACC (Shanghai) Co., Ltd Shanghai, China 2,000,000 RMB 100% Design & Engineering

ITS digitech Pvt. Ltd. Bhau Patil Marg, India 20,193,002 INR 100% Design & Engineering

CoLT Prüf und Test GmbH St. Martin, Austria 35,000 EUR 91% Design & Engineering
1 of which shareholder contribution for the ordinary capital increase (not yet registered): 47,000,000 EUR

(iv) Currency translation 
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s 
entities are measured using the currency of the primary eco-
nomic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional 
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented 
in euros (“EUR”), which is the functional currency of the FACC 
Group and the Group’s presentation currency.
 
With regard to the currency translation of financial statements 
of subsidiaries presented in foreign currencies, the rates as at 
the end of the reporting period were applied to items in the con-
solidated statement of financial position, and average rates for 
the reporting period were applied to items in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income. Differences in these cur-
rency translations are recognised as part of other comprehensive 
income in equity.

Exchange rate differences arising from the translation of transac-
tions and monetary items in the consolidated statement of finan-
cial position denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in 
profit or loss at the rates applicable at the time of the transaction 
or valuation. Foreign currency translation in relation to foreign 
currency derivatives is set out in Section (q). 
 
The exchange rates used in the currency translation are as fol-
lows: 

Year-end rate
February 28, 2015 Average rate 

1 EUR/CAD
FY 2014/15 1.3995 1.4520

1 EUR/USD
FY 2014/15 1.1240 1.2937

1 EUR/RMB
FY 2014/15 7.0485 8.0068
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(d) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents 
the excess of the consideration transferred over the Group’s share 
in the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. If the con-
sideration transferred is less than the fair value of the net assets 
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income affecting profit 
or loss.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a 
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating 
units (CGUs), or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit 
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of 
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest 
level within the entity at which goodwill is monitored for internal 
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored internally at the 
segment level. 

A CGU or group of CGUs to which the goodwill was allocated 
is reviewed for impairment annually at the end of the reporting 
period or more frequently if events indicate a potential impair-
ment. In doing so, the carrying amount of the CGU, including the 
goodwill, is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the 
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. If 
the carrying amount of the CGU exceeds the recoverable amount, 
the difference is recognised immediately as an impairment loss in 
profit or loss. Any impairment recognised for the goodwill is not 
reversed in subsequent periods.

(ii) Software and delivery rights
Purchased intangible assets are measured at acquisition cost in 
the consolidated statement of financial position, and are generally 
amortised on a straight-line basis over their respective useful life 
(three to ten years). Delivery rights are amortised on the basis of 
the shipsets supplied or outstanding. 

(iii) Research and development costs
An intangible asset arising from development is to be only recog-
nised when all of the following criteria are met: 
 
a) It is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that 

it will be available for use or sale;
b) It is intended to complete the intangible asset as well as to use 

or sell it;
c) It is possible to use or sell the intangible asset; 
d) It can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate 

probable future economic benefits. There is proof that, among 
other things, a market exists for the products of the intangible 
asset or the intangible asset as such or, if it is intended for in-
ternal use, the benefit of the intangible asset; 

e) Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete 
the development and to use or sell the intangible asset are 
available;

f) The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its 
development can be reliably measured.

 
The Group capitalises the development costs in accordance with 
IAS 38, based on project-related costs. All eligible development 
costs for each project are capitalised. The capitalised develop-
ment costs are treated as “construction in process”. Amorti- 
sation starts when series production is ready, based on shipsets 
supplied, with reference to the sales framework, as determined 
by the management. The sales framework is determined based 
on the Airline Monitor (market forecast by third parties), as used 
throughout the aviation industry, and current customer forecasts. 
This sales framework is re-assessed at the end of each reporting 
period. Depending on the status of the project (new project or on-
going project with residual terms) the planning horizon of the sales 
framework is a maximum of 20 years. This amortisation method 
ensures that changes in the order volume have a direct effect on 
the development costs. The costs of research projects are imme-
diately recognised as an expense as and when incurred. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, con- 
struction or production of qualifying assets (which are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale) are added to the production cost of those 
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for 
their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed 
as and when incurred.

(e) Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at ac-
quisition or production costs, less scheduled depreciation and 
write-downs. 
 
The production costs of property, plant and equipment comprise 
direct costs and reasonable parts of the overhead costs. 
 
Property, plant and equipment subject to depreciation are depre-
ciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the 
respective asset. Depreciation is charged over the following useful 
lives assumed unchanged across all years presented: 

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment 
are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying 
amounts of property, plant and equipment and are recognised 
within “Other operating income and expenses” in the consolida-
ted statement of comprehensive income.

(f) Assets from rental and leasing contracts
The Group leases assets as a lessee. Leases in which a signifi-
cant part of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by 
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made un-
der operating leases (net of any incentives received from the les-
sor) are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Useful life
in years 

From To

Buildings 10 50

Leasehold improvements1 33 50

Technical equipment and machinery 3 33

Fixtures and fittings 5 14

Vehicles 5 8

1 or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

Year-end rate
February 29, 2016 Average rate 

1 EUR/CAD
FY 2015/16 1.4767 1.4388

1 EUR/USD
FY 2015/16 1.0888 1.1014

1 EUR/RMB
FY 2015/16 7.1351 6.9799

1 EUR/INR
FY 2015/16 74.3825 71.6992
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Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified 
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s 
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased pro-
perty and the present value of the minimum lease payments. In 
the same amount, a leasing liability is recognised under non-cur-
rent liabilities. The interest element of the finance cost is charged 
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the 
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest 
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. Property, 
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated 
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

(g) Other non-current financial assets 
This item comprises securities and investments. Regular pur- 
chases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the settle-
ment date. 
 
All items are classified as “available for sale”, and are initially meas- 
ured at cost at the time of acquisition and subsequently carried at 
fair value. The changes in value are recognised as part of equity 
in other comprehensive income. In case of impairment or when 
the security is sold, these changes are recognised in the con- 
solidated statement of comprehensive income. The fair value 
of the securities is based on the share price at the end of the 
reporting period. 
 
(h) Impairment of intangible assets (goodwill, development 
costs, software and delivery rights) and property, plant and 
equipment 
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life as well as intangible 
assets not ready for use are not subject to amortisation but are 
tested annually for impairment in the course of an impairment 
test at the segment level. Assets that are subject to amortisation 
are reviewed for impairment whenever events indicate that the 
carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. An im-
pairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recover-
able amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell 
and value in use. For purposes of assessing impairment, assets 
are grouped at the lowest cash flow generating levels which are 
largely independent from the cash flows of other assets or groups 
of assets (CGU). Prior impairments of non-financial assets (other 
than goodwill) are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting 
date.
 
(i) Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of acquisition or production 
costs and net realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
 
Acquisition costs include all costs incurred in bringing the asset to 
the condition required and moving it to the specific location. Pro-
duction costs include all direct costs and also reasonable parts 
of the production-related overheads, based on normal operating 
capacity. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of qualifying assets (which are assets 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use or sale) are added to the production cost of 
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready 
for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recog-
nised in profit or loss in the period in which they occur. The costs 
per unit are determined according to the moving average price 
method. 

The net realisable value is the estimated selling price for the 
assets, less expected future costs of completion and sale, 

determined on the basis of experience. Price reductions in the 
replacement costs are generally considered when determining the 
net realisable value.
 
(j) Receivables and other assets 
Trade receivables, other receivables and other assets are initially 
recognised at fair value or acquisition cost and subsequently car-
ried at amortised cost, less any value adjustments (in case of im-
pairment). Foreign currency receivables are valued at the year-end 
exchange rate.
 
(k) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash (cash in hand), 
cheques received and deposits held at call with f inancial 
institutions with original maturities of three months or less. This is 
in accordance with the definition of cash and cash equivalents in 
the consolidated statement of cash flows. 
 
(l) Employee benefits 
 
(i) Pension obligations
Based on an individual commitment as a result of an executive 
employee joining FACC AG on 1 June 2014, the Group is obli- 
gated to pay a pension to this executive employee when he 
retires. This defined benefit obligation is measured by a qualified 
and independent actuary at the end of each reporting period. 

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial 
position as at 29 February 2016 in respect of defined benefit 
pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
(DBO) at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan 
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by 
an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. 
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined 
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest 
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the 
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to 
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obliga-
tion. In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, 
the market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost, recognised in the consolidated state- 
ment of comprehensive income under “Staff costs” (except 
where included in the cost of an asset), reflects the increase 
in the defined benefit obligation the reporting period 2015/16. 
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount 
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the 
fair value of plan assets. Both are calculated at the beginning 
of the reporting period taking into account any changes that 
arose due to contribution and benefit payments made with re-
gard to the net balance in the course of the reporting period. The 
net interest cost is included in “Staff costs” in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income.

Actuarial gains and losses (“revaluation effects”) arising from ex-
perience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in 
the period in which they arise.

(ii) Defined contribution plans
The Group pays monthly contributions into an industry-wide 
pension fund for all executives. These contributions are invested 
in an employee account, and paid out or passed on to the employ- 
ee as an entitlement upon retirement. The Group is exclusively 
obligated to make those contributions that were recorded as 
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expenditure in the same reporting period in which they were in-
curred (defined contribution obligation). 
 
(iii) Termination benefits
Statutory provisions require the Group to pay a one-off termin- 
ation benefit to an employee whose employment commenced up 
to and until 31 December 2002 when employment is terminated 
by the Group or when an employee retires. This termination benefit 
depends on the number of years of service and the remuneration 
at the time of severance or retirement and amounts to between 
two to twelve monthly salaries. A provision is made for this obli-
gation. 
 
This provision is calculated in accordance with IAS 19 using the 
projected unit credit method. The present value of future pay-
ments is accumulated according to actuarial calculations over the 
estimated period of employment of the employees. The calcula- 
tion is done at the end of the respective reporting period, based 
on the expert opinion of an actuary.

Actuarial gains and losses (“revaluation effects”) arising from ex-
perience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in 
the period in which they arise.

In addition, provisions for termination benefits are made due to 
contractual termination benefit obligations vis-à-vis the managing 
directors of FACC AG. The calculation basis for these contractual 
termination benefit obligations is the amount that would have to 
be paid at the end of the reporting period if the managing director 
left the company.

(iv) Defined contribution plans (staff provision fund;
Mitarbeitervorsorgekasse)
For all employee/employer relationships which started in Austria 
after 31 December 2002, the Group makes a monthly contribu-
tion of 1.53% of the remuneration to a corporate staff provision 
fund, which deposits the contributions into an account of the 
employee. The amount is paid out to the employee or the em- 
ployee is entitled to this amount upon termination of employment. 
The Group is exclusively obligated to pay those contributions that 
were recorded as expenditure in the same reporting period in 
which they were incurred (defined contribution obligation).

(v) Other non-current employee obligations
Based on collective agreements, the Group is obligated to pay 
employees anniversary bonuses equivalent to one month’s salary 
or wage (excluding fringe benefits and bonuses) upon completion 
of 25 years of service. A provision was made for this obligation. 
 
This provision is measured according to the projected unit credit 
method and assumptions applied for the measurement of termin- 
ation benefit obligations. However, actuarial gains and losses 
(“revaluation effects”) are recognised through profit or loss.
 
(m) Other provisions 
Other provisions are recorded if the Group has a present legal or 
constructive obligation towards a third party as a result of a past 
event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be re-
quired to settle the obligation. The provisions are recorded at the 
value determined according to best estimates made at the time 
the consolidated financial statements are prepared. A provision 
is not recognised if the amount cannot be reasonably assessed 
(in exceptional cases). This liability is recognised as contingent 
liability.
 

(n) Taxes 
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred 
tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it 
relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other compre-
hensive income. In this case, tax is also recognised in other com-
prehensive income or in equity, respectively.

Pursuant to the provisions stipulated in Section 9 of the Austrian 
Corporate Income Tax Act (KStG), a group and tax compensation 
agreement dated 13/15 February 2012 was entered into between 
Aerospace Innovation Investment GmbH (now FACC AG) as 
group parent and Aero Vision Holding GmbH (which was merged 
with FACC AG on 28 February 2014) as well as FACC AG (now 
FACC Operations GmbH) as group members. This agreement is 
effective for the first time in the fiscal year 2012. The group and 
tax compensation agreement was lodged with the competent 
tax authority by group tax application dated 27 February 2012. If 
the group parent as well as the group member generate revenue, 
the positive tax compensation to be paid by the group member 
amounts to 25% of the calculated tax income. If a group premium 
is generated due to the losses of the group parent or the group 
member (irrespective of the loss having arisen prior to or during 
the existence of the group of companies), this premium is allo- 
cated according to the “costs-by-cause” principle. The positive 
tax compensation to be paid and the negative tax compensation 
to be received by the group member is calculated on the basis 
of the prorated tax charge/group premium plus any minimum tax 
that would have to be paid if no group had been set up (and that 
has to be paid by the group parent if the group of companies still 
exists).

A VAT group within the meaning of Section 2 Para. 2 No. 2 UStG 
is in place between FACC AG and FACC Operations GmbH as of 
June 2014.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on 
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated fi-
nancial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS. However, 
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the 
initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not account- 
ed for, both at initial recognition and thereafter, if it arises from 
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than 
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects 
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax 
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted 
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and 
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against 
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary 
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except for 
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable 
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future due to this influence.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets 
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
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authority on either the same or different taxable entities where 
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.  

(o) Borrowings 
The Group’s borrowings are initially measured at fair value, net of 
transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently carried at amor-
tised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transac- 
tion costs) and the redemption value is recognised through profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective 
interest method.  
  
(p) Trade and other payables 
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value or at 
cost and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
 
(q) Derivative financial instruments 
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge risk 
exposures with regard to foreign currency and interest rate risks. 
The Group’s policy is not to utilise derivative financial instruments 
for trading or speculative purposes. Derivative financial instru-
ments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date, 
and are carried at amortised cost at the end of the subsequent 
reporting periods. Changes in fair value are recognised based on 
whether certain qualifying criteria under IAS 39 are satisfied in or-
der to apply hedge accounting. 
 
(i) Cash flow hedges
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments to hedge against 
the variability of cash flows attributable to highly probable forecast 
transactions qualify as cash flow hedges. The Group documents 
at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedg- 
ing instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk manage- 
ment objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging 
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at 
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the deriva-
tives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in 
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. 
 
The Group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to 
hedge the foreign currency risk associated with certain forecast 
foreign currency revenue. The effective portion of changes in the 
fair value of these derivatives is recognised in other comprehensive 
income and recognised in the hedging reserve (currency hedges) 
as part of other reserves. Gains and losses relating to the ineffec-
tive portion are immediately recognised through profit or loss.
 
Amounts accumulated in the hedging reserve are reclassified 
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the 
period when the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example, 
when the forecast revenue transaction takes place). 
 
When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge 
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative 
gain or loss existing in the hedging reserve at that time remains in 
equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultima-
tely recognised through profit or loss. When a forecast transaction 
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that 
was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the consoli- 
dated statement of comprehensive income. 

(ii) Derivatives not qualified for hedge accounting
As regards derivatives that do not qualify for cash flow hedge ac-
counting under IAS 39 (such as structured currency options and 
interest rate swaps, or those where the rules of hedge accounting 
are not applied), changes in fair value are recognised in the con-
solidated statement of comprehensive income under “Fair value 

measurement of derivative financial instruments” or – if they relate 
to recognised foreign currency trade receivables and payables – 
in “Other operating income and expenses”. Interest income and 
expenses resulting from interest rate derivatives are included with- 
in the line item “Interest income from financial instruments” in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
 
(r) Foreign currency measurement 
Foreign currency translation of receivables, cash and cash equiva-
lents and payables is carried out at the rate prevailing at the end 
of the reporting period. Gains and losses are recognised in profit 
or loss. 

(s) Government grants 
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there 
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the 
Group will comply with the applicable conditions. 

Government grants relating to costs are recognised over the 
period in which the relating costs are incurred. 

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are 
included in non-current/current liabilities as deferred items and are 
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected 
useful lives of the related assets. 
 
(t) Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, con- 
struction or production of qualifying assets (which are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale) are added to the acquisition or production 
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantial-
ly ready for their intended use or sale. 
 
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period 
in which they are incurred.

(u) Revenue recognition 
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received 
or to be received for the sales of goods and services in the or-
dinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of 
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after elimin- 
ating inter-Group sales. 
 
The Group generates revenue by sale of goods (shipsets) to its 
customers. Sales of goods within the underlying supply agree-
ments are recognised when the Group or a Group company has 
delivered the products to the customer and after any risks have 
been transferred to the customer according to the agreed terms 
and conditions. 
 
In addition, the Group earns revenue from the provision of en-
gineering services and the rendering of services to third parties 
relating to producing shipsets. These services include: selling 
technology and research results, as well as carrying out training 
programmes for third parties. This revenue is recognised over the 
period of service rendered to the relevant third party. 
 
The Group’s revenue is partly generated by construction contracts. 
The recognition of this revenue is explained under Note 2(b)(iv).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
(a) Principles of financial risk management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: mar-
ket risk (including foreign currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, 
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity 
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses 
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise 
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. 
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain 
risk exposures. It is the Group’s policy to basically not enter into 
derivative transactions for speculative purposes. 
 
Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department 
(Group treasury). Group treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges 
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating 
units. 
 
The Group’s industry-specific risk lies in the changes in manu-
facturers’ aircraft delivery plans to the end customers. The risk 
arising from the changes in future aircraft deliveries has an effect 
on the future revenue of the Group, since the deliveries of compo- 
nents manufactured by the Group follow this trend. The risk may 
lie in a reduction or the postponement of aircraft deliveries. This 
has the effect that the development costs cannot be recovered 
over the calculated period. This risk is counteracted through di-
versification within the sector, on the one hand, by maintaining 
supply agreements with both market dominating commercial 
aircraft suppliers and, on the other hand, by entering into supply 
agreements with the business jet sector in addition to the 
wide-body passenger aircraft. There is also geographic diversifica-
tion through conclusion of supply agreements with the American/
European markets and also in the Asian region. The Group is also 
a development partner for improvements to existing aircraft types, 
generating supply agreements for refurbishment of such aircraft. 

(b) Financial risk factors 
 
(i) Market risk 
This includes especially the exchange and interest rate risks, 
as explained in more detail below. Apart from the two risk groups 
described below, there are no other significant price risks. 
 
Foreign exchange risk – The Group is exposed to foreign ex- 
change risk arising from cash flows from operating business, 
carried out mainly in USD. Consequently, the USD/EUR exchange 
rate affects the Group’s profit or future cash flows to the extent 
to which the Group does not use financial instruments to hedge 
its current and future net foreign currency position. The Group 
treasury’s hedging strategies are designed to control and mini- 
mise the influence of exchange rate fluctuations on these profits or 
future cash flows. The Management Board approves the strategies 
and reports to the Supervisory Board on a regular basis. This is 
an ongoing process. The goal is to minimise the inherent risk in 
market fluctuations by pursuing the right strategy. 
 
The Group treasury’s risk management policy is to hedge anti-
cipated USD cash flows (arising from revenue and purchases of 
raw materials) for the following periods as described below: 100% 
hedging for the next twelve months, 50% hedging for 13 to 24 
months, and 25% hedging for 25 to 36 months. These USD cash 
flows qualify as ‘highly probable’ forecast transactions with re-
gard to hedge accounting purposes. The Group therefore applies 
hedge accounting for the forward foreign exchange contracts in 
accordance with the rules of hedge accounting.

A change in exchange rates with respect to all currencies as at 28 
February 2015 and 29 February 2016 would basically impact the 
Group only with regard to the USD, on the one hand due to the 
effects from the measurement at the end of the reporting period 
of USD items in the consolidated financial statements, and on 
the other hand due to the effect from the change in fair values of 
the derivative financial instruments in connection with currency 
hedges.

A change in the EUR/USD exchange rate as at 28 February 2015 
and 29 February 2016 by +5% (average exchange rate at the end 
of the reporting period: 1.1240 and 1.088, respectively) would 
result in a decrease in profit/loss (after taxes) and equity by 4,607 
EURk and 4,053 EURk due to the measurement at the end of the 
reporting period, as well as an increase in total comprehensive 
income/loss and equity by 19,475 EURk and 10,992 EURk due 
to the change in fair values of derivative financial instruments in 
connection with currency hedges.

A change in the EUR/USD exchange rate as at 28 February 2015 
and 29 February 2016 by –5% (average exchange rate at the end 
of the reporting period: 1.1240 and 1.088, respectively) would 
result in an increase of the profit/loss (after taxes) and equity by 
5,092 EURk and 4,480 EURk due to the measurement at the end 
of the reporting period, as well as a decrease in total comprehen-
sive income/loss and equity by 8,982 EURk and 11,967 EURk 
due to the change in fair values of derivative financial instruments 
in connection with currency hedges. 
 
Interest rate risk – Risks from interest rate changes arise almost 
exclusively from non-current borrowings. A list of all the significant 
interest-bearing liabilities and the residual terms, together with 
information on existing interest rate swap transactions, is included 
in Notes 12, 13 and 14. 
 
In the context of whether an item bears fixed or variable interest 
rates, the Group assesses the risks of interest rate changes in 
the light of changes in cash flows of future interest payments. 
In close cooperation with market specialists from the banking 
sector, Group treasury routinely checks for every interest-bearing 
item whether a hedging instrument should be used. Strategies are 
presented to and approved by the Management Board.
 
If the market interest rate level had been higher/lower by 50 basis 
points as at 28 February 2015 and 29 February 2016, the profit/
loss (after taxes) and equity would have been lowered/increased 
by 247 EURk and 256 EURk. The calculation was based on the 
financial assets and liabilities bearing variable interest rates. 

(ii) Liquidity risk 
It is a key element of FACC’s business policy to, at all times, en-
sure adequate availability of cash and cash equivalents as liquidity 
reserve to be able to meet current and future obligations. This is 
assured by the reported total amount of cash and cash equiva-
lents and extensive unused credit facilities (67,000 EURk as at 
28 February 2015 and 66,162 EURk as at 29 February 2016). 
Working capital is constantly monitored and reported to the Man- 
agement Board. Timely financing is a top priority in financing 
considerations. Surplus cash and cash equivalents are invested 
in non-speculative, highly liquid financial instruments as required. 
These include mainly money market certificates, call money, secur- 
ities and other money market papers that generally mature in less 
than three months. Refer to Note 3(e) for a maturity analysis of the 
financial liabilities. Reference is also made to Note 12 with regard 
to the covenant agreement.
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(iii) Credit risk 
The Group operates within the airline industry and has two key 
customers. Consequently, the Group faces a concentration 
of credit risk in respect to the limited number of aircraft manufac-
turers. 
 
Non-compliance by contractual partners is a credit risk to the 
Group. The Group has introduced guidelines to limit credit risks. 
Products and services are sold to customers with a history of 
appropriate creditworthiness taking into account the financial si-
tuation, past experience as well as other factors. The creditworth- 
iness of new customers is assessed with regard to the default 
risk. The creditworthiness of existing customers is also regularly 
monitored. Claims against customers are insured against default 
should they exceed certain limits. Credit risks also arise from cash 
and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and de- 
posits with banks and other financial institutions. Such transac-
tions are only carried out with reputable and creditworthy banks 
and financial institutions. 

The maximum credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of each 
financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial position. 

No significant receivables had to be written off during the relevant 
fiscal years.

(c) Contract volumes of derivative financial instruments and 
associated fair values
 
The notional amounts of certain types of derivative financial instru- 
ments serve as a basis for comparison with instruments recog- 
nised in the consolidated statement of financial position but do 
not necessarily indicate the current fair value of the instrument 
and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit risk 
or price risk. Depending on the individual conditions, the derivative 
financial instruments have a favourable (assets) or unfavourable 
(liabilities) effect as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates 
or foreign exchange rates. The aggregate contractual or notional 
amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to 
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the 
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities 
can be subject to considerable temporal fluctuation.
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The contract volume of the foreign currency derivatives is shown below, broken down according to maturity: 

With regard to payments from cash flow hedges, the contractual due dates, i.e. the time when the underlying transactions are recognised 
through profit or loss, essentially correspond to the maturity of the above currency hedging agreements.
 
The contract volume of the derivative financial instruments for interest rate hedging is as follows: 

The fair values of derivative financial instruments for foreign currency and interest rate hedging are as follows:

RESIDUAL TERM

Up to 1 year 
 USD’000

1 to 5 years  
USD’000

More than 5 years 
USD’000

Total 
USD’000

BALANCE AS AT FEBRUARY 28, 2015
CURRENCY HEDGING AGREEMENTS

Forward foreign exchange contracts – USD 290,000 135,000 – 425,000

BALANCE AS AT FEBRUARY 29, 2016
CURRENCY HEDGING AGREEMENTS

Forward foreign exchange contracts – USD 255,000 80,000 – 335,000

RESIDUAL TERM

Up to 1 year 
 EUR’000

1 to 5 years  
EUR’000

More than 5 years 
EUR’000

Total 
EUR’000

BALANCE AS AT FEBRUARY 28, 2015

Interest rate swaps – 20,000 – 20,000

BALANCE AS AT FEBRUARY 29, 2016

Interest rate swaps 20,000 – – 20,000

BALANCE AS AT FEBRUARY 28, 2015
Volume

USD’000
Volume

EUR’000
Fair value
EUR’000

Forward foreign exchange contracts – USD 425,000 – (48,199)

Interest rate swaps – 20,000 (10,340)

BALANCE AS AT FEBRUARY 29, 2016

Forward foreign exchange contracts – USD 335,000 – (28,378)

Interest rate swaps – 20,000 (5,098)

(d) Carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments
Original financial instruments mainly include other non-current 
financial assets, trade receivables, bank balances, bonds, financial 
liabilities and trade payables. 
 
Purchases and disposals of all the financial instruments are 
reported as at the completion date. 
 

At the time of acquisition, the financial instruments are generally 
measured at cost corresponding to the acquisition-date fair value. 
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash 
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred 
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards 
of the ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the 
payment obligation has expired.
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The fair value of a financial instrument is the price at which a party 
would take over the rights and/or duties under this financial in- 
strument from another party. The fair values were determined ba-
sed on the market information available at the end of the reporting 
period and the measurement methods described below. The fair 
values of financial instruments reported in the financial statements 
may differ from the values to be realised in the market at a future 
date due to varying factors. 
 
Trade receivables, other receivables and cash and cash equiva-
lents generally have short residual terms. For this reason, their 
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period approximate 
their fair values. If no market prices are available, the fair values of 
non-current financial assets correspond to the present values of 
the associated payments, allowing for the current market param- 
eters in each case. 
 
The fair value of available-for-sale securities was estimated based 
on their quoted market price at the end of the reporting period. 
 

The current and non-current financial assets and liabilities are classified or categorised in accordance with IAS 39 as follows:

 

Category
IAS 391 

Carrying 
amount as at
February 28,

 2015
 EUR’000

Fair value 
as at

February 28,
 2015

EUR’000

Carrying 
amount as at
February 29,

2016
 EUR’000

Fair value 
as at

February 29,
2016

EUR’000

ASSETS

Measurement at (amortised) cost

Non-current receivables LaR 24,597 24,597 30,232 30,232

Trade receivables LaR 91,707 91,707 106,383 106,383

Receivables from construction contracts LaR 28,920 28,920 28,633 28,633

Receivables from related companies LaR 35,322 35,322 19,060 19,060

Cash and cash equivalents LaR 110,955 110,955 56,215 56,215

Measurement at fair value

Book-entry securities (not listed) AfS 44 44 44 44

Securities (listed) AfS 425 425 407 407

Derivatives with positive fair value (interest rate swaps) AtFVtP&L  –   –  – –

Derivatives with positive fair value
(forward foreign exchange contracts) – – – – –

Total financial assets 291,970 291,970 240,974 240,974

LIABILITIES 

Measurement at (amortised) cost

Promissory note loans FLAC 45,000 45,000 42,000 42,000

Bonds FLAC 89,067 97,486 89,242 90,220

Bank borrowings FLAC 79,441 79,441 96,848 96,848

Trade payables FLAC 72,087 72,087 72,679 72,679

Payables to related companies (Group financing) FLAC – – 425 425

Measurement at fair value

Derivatives with negative fair value (interest rate swaps) AtFVtP&L 10,340 10,340 5.,098 5,098

Derivatives with negative fair value 
(forward foreign exchange contracts) –   48,199   48,199 28,378 28,378

Total financial liabilities 344,134 352,553 334,670 335,648

1 LaR Loans and Receivables 
 AfS Available for Sale 
 AtFVtP&L At Fair Value through Profit and Loss 
 FLAC Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 

Trade payables and other current financial liabilities generally have 
short residual terms; the carrying amounts therefore approximate 
the fair values.
 
The fair value of bonds corresponds to the market value at 
the end of the reporting period. For variable-interest loans, the 
carrying amount is the fair value. For non-current fixed-interest 
bank borrowings (including promissory note loans), the fair value 
was calculated by discounting the cash flows using the market 
interest rate.
 
The fair value of the derivative financial instruments on the assets 
and the liabilities sides is the estimated amount the Group would 
have to pay or would receive if the transactions were settled on 
28 February 2015 and 29 February 2016.
 
With regard to financial instruments measured at fair value, a 
differentiation is to be made according to the following three 
categories. 
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• Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for iden-

tical assets or liabilities. 
 
• Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that 

is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). 
• Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). An 
allocation to level 3 is already made if an unobservable input 
exists in the course of the measurement that exerts a signifi-
cant influence on the measurement.

Level 1 
EUR’000 

Level 2 
EUR’000

Level 3 
EUR’000

Total 
EUR’000

BALANCE AS AT FEBRUARY 28, 2015

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Non-current financial assets 425 – 44 469

Derivative financial instruments – – – –

Current assets   

Derivative financial instruments – – – –

LIABILITIES   

Non-current liabilities   

Derivative financial instruments – 10,340 – 10,340

Current liabilities   

Derivative financial instruments – 48,199 – 48,199

BALANCE AS AT FEBRUARY 29, 2016

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Non-current financial assets 407 – 44 451

Derivative financial instruments – – – –

Current assets   

Derivative financial instruments – – – –

LIABILITIES 

Non-current liabilities   

Derivative financial instruments – – – –

Current liabilities   

Derivative financial instruments – 33,476 – 33,476

The allocation of the financial instruments measured at fair value to the three measurement categories at the end of the reporting period is 
as follows:
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(e) Residual terms and cash flow analysis of financial liabilities
The residual terms of the financial liabilities are as follows:

RESIDUAL TERM

Category 
IAS 391

Carrying 
amount as at
February 28,

 2015
 EUR’000

Year 1 
EUR’000

Year 2
EUR’000

Years
3 to 5

EUR’000

In more than
5 years

EUR’000

LIABILITIES

Measurement at (amortised) cost

Bonds FLAC   89,067   –    –    –    89,067

Promissory note loans FLAC   45,000   45,000   –    –  –

Bank borrowings FLAC   79,441   13,173   9,920   20,344   36,004

Trade payables FLAC   72,087   72,087   –    –    –  

Measurement at fair value

Derivatives with negative fair value
(interest rate swaps) AtFVtP&L   10,340   –    10,340   –    –  

Derivatives with negative fair value
(forward foreign exchange contracts) –   48,199   38,686   9,513   –    –  

Total financial liabilities    344,134   168,946   29,773   20,344 125,071

RESIDUAL TERM

Category 
IAS 391 

Carrying 
amount as at
February 29,

2016
 EUR’000

Year 1
EUR’000

Year 2
EUR’000

Years
3 to 5

EUR’000

In more then
5 years

EUR’000

LIABILITIES

Measurement at (amortised) cost

Bonds FLAC 89,242   –    –  89,242  –

Promissory note loans FLAC 42,000 – 8,000  34,000  –

Bank borrowings FLAC 96,848 21,634 8,903 32,533 33,778

Trade payables FLAC 72,679 72,679   –    –    –  

Payables to related companies (Group financing) FLAC 425 425   –    –    –  

Measurement at fair value

Derivatives with negative fair value
(interest rate swaps) AtFVtP&L 5,098 5,098 –   –    –  

Derivatives with negative fair value
(forward foreign exchange contracts) – 28,378 24,430 3,948   –    –  

Total financial liabilities   334,670   124,266 20,851   155,775   33,778

1 FLAC Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
  AtFVtP&L At Fair Value through Profit and Loss 

1 FLAC Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
  AtFVtP&L At Fair Value through Profit and Loss
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The following contractually agreed payment obligations (interest payments and redemptions) arise in the subsequent years from the 
financial liabilities as at 28 February 2015:

The following contractually agreed payment obligations (interest payments and redemptions) arise in the subsequent years from the 
financial liabilities as at 29 February 2016: 

Category
IAS 391

Carrying 
amount as at
February 28,

2015 
EUR’000

Fixed
interest

EUR’000LIABILITIES

Measurement at (amortised) cost

Promissory note loans2 FLAC   45,000 (626)

Bonds FLAC   89,067 (3,600)

Bank borrowings FLAC   79,441 (989)

Trade payables FLAC   72,087   –  

Measurement at fair value

Derivatives with negative fair value (interest rate swaps)3 AtFVtP&L   10,340   –  

Derivatives with negative fair value (forward foreign exchange contracts) –   48,199   –  

Total financial liabilities    344,134 (5,215)

Category
IAS 391

Carrying 
amount as at
February 29,

2016 
EUR’000

Fixed
interest

EUR’000LIABILITIES

Measurement at (amortised) cost

Promissory note loans2 FLAC   42,000 (634)

Bonds FLAC   89,242 (3,600)

Bank borrowings FLAC   96,848 (1,118)

Trade payables FLAC   72,679   –  

Measurement at fair value

Derivatives with negative fair value (interest rate swaps)3 AtFVtP&L   5,098   –  

Derivatives with negative fair value (forward foreign exchange contracts) –   28,378   –  

Total financial liabilities   334,244 (5,353)

1 FFLAC Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
 AtFVtP&L At Fair Value through Profit and Loss
2 For information on the covenant agreement, please refer to Note 12.
3 Due to the partially high volatility of the current interest rate environment, a reasonable presentation of the interest payments based on an assessment of the interest rate 
 development up to the maturity of the interest derivative (in 2016) cannot be presented. Therefore, no presentation is given for the following fiscal years.

1 FFLAC Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
 AtFVtP&L At Fair Value through Profit and Loss
2 For information on the covenant agreement, please refer to Note 12.
3 Due to the partially high volatility of the current interest rate environment, a reasonable presentation of the interest payments based on an assessment of the interest rate 
 development up to the maturity of the interest derivative (in 2016) cannot be presented. Therefore, no presentation is given for the following fiscal years.

The interest payments were calculated based on the last interest rates as determined on or before the end of the reporting period. 
Planned figures for future new liabilities are not included. Financial liabilities that can be repaid at any time are always allocated to the 
earliest maturity interval.

The interest payments were calculated based on the last interest rates as determined on or before the end of the reporting period. 
Planned figures for future new liabilities are not included. Financial liabilities that can be repaid at any time are always allocated to the 
earliest maturity interval.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Category
IAS 391

Carrying 
amount as at
February 28,

2015 
EUR’000

Fixed
interest

EUR’000LIABILITIES

Measurement at (amortised) cost

Promissory note loans2 FLAC   45,000 (626)

Bonds FLAC   89,067 (3,600)

Bank borrowings FLAC   79,441 (989)

Trade payables FLAC   72,087   –  

Measurement at fair value

Derivatives with negative fair value (interest rate swaps)3 AtFVtP&L   10,340   –  

Derivatives with negative fair value (forward foreign exchange contracts) –   48,199   –  

Total financial liabilities    344,134 (5,215)

Category
IAS 391

Carrying 
amount as at
February 29,

2016 
EUR’000

Fixed
interest

EUR’000LIABILITIES

Measurement at (amortised) cost

Promissory note loans2 FLAC   42,000 (634)

Bonds FLAC   89,242 (3,600)

Bank borrowings FLAC   96,848 (1,118)

Trade payables FLAC   72,679   –  

Measurement at fair value

Derivatives with negative fair value (interest rate swaps)3 AtFVtP&L   5,098   –  

Derivatives with negative fair value (forward foreign exchange contracts) –   28,378   –  

Total financial liabilities   334,244 (5,353)

Fiscal year 2015/16 Fiscal years 2016/17 to 2019/20 Fiscal year 2020/21 ff.

Variable
interest

EUR’000
Redemption 

EUR’000

Fixed
interest

EUR’000

Variable
interest

EUR’000
Redemption

EUR’000

Fixed
interest

EUR’000

Variable
interest

EUR’000
Redemption

EUR’000

(560) (45,000)   –    –    –   –   –   –  

  –    –  (14,400)   –    –  (1,160)   –  (90,000)

(548) (13,173) (3,448) (1,882) (30,264) (7,807) (4,333) (36,004)

  –  (72,087)   –    –    –    –    –    –  

  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –  

  –  (38,686)   –    –  (9,513)   –    –    –  

(1,108) (168,946) (17,848) (1,882) (39,777) (8,967) (4,333) (126,004)

Fiscal year 2016/17 Fiscal years 2017/18 to 2020/21 Fiscal year 2021/22 ff.

Variable
interest

EUR’000
Redemption

EUR’000

Fixed
interest

EUR’000

Variable
interest

EUR’000
Redemption

EUR’000

Fixed
interest

EUR’000

Variable
interest

EUR’000
Redemption

EUR’000

(515) –   (1,369)    (1,044)    (42,000)   –   –   –  

  –    –  (11,950)   –    (90,000)  –   –  –

(503) (21,634) (3,555) (1,732) (41,436) (7,106) (3,930) (33,777)

  –  (72,679)   –    –    –    –    –    –  

  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –  

  –  (24,430)   –    –  (3,948)   –    –    –  

(1,018) (118,743) (16,874) (2,776) (177,384) (7,106) (3,930) (33,777)
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The Group has access to the following credit facilities: 

(f) Net result from financial instruments
The net result from the Group’s financial instruments according to 
classes or measurement categories pursuant to IAS 39 comprises 

The change in the provision for impaired loans and receivables is 
shown under “Other operating income and expenses”. The sub-
sequent measurement at fair value of the financial assets available 
for sale is shown in other comprehensive income under “Fair value 

February 28, 
2015 

 EUR’000

February 29, 
2016 

EUR’000

Total credit facilities agreed 67,000 72,000

Total credit facilities unused 67,000 66,162

net gains and losses, total interest income and expenses and im-
pairment losses, and is as follows:

measurement of securities”. The remaining components of the net 
result are mainly included in “Finance costs”, “Interest income from 
financial instruments” and in “Fair value measurement of derivative 
financial instruments”.

Fiscal year 2014/15

From subsequent measurement 

From
interest

EUR’000 

At fair
value 

 EUR’000

Change
in value

EUR’000

From
disposal

 EUR’000
Total

EUR’000

Loans and receivables      613     – 87 – 700 

Financial assets available for sale     10  31    – – 41

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss (3,453) (387)    – – (3,840)

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (6,438)     –    – – (6,438)

Total (9,268) (356) 87 – (9,537)

Fiscal year 2015/16

From subsequent measurement 

From
interest

EUR’000 

At fair
value 

 EUR’000

Change
in value

EUR’000

From
disposal

 EUR’000
Total

EUR’000

Loans and receivables      413     – (296) – 117 

Financial assets available for sale     10  13    – – 23

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss (5,472) 5,242    – – (230)

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (6,585)     –    – – (6,585)

Total (11,633) 5,255 (296) – (6,674)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 SEGMENT REPORTING 

In the reporting period, an externally controlled fraud incident 
(Fake President Incident) resulted in an illegal outflow of the 
Group’s liquid funds in the amount of 52,847 EURk. Immediately 
adopted measures led to the freezing of 10,860 EURk in recei-
ving accounts. This amount has been recognised as non-current 
receivable, as the subsidiary FACC Operations GmbH considers 

The Group manufactures components for the aviation industry, 
mainly for civil aircraft and helicopters. The product range includes 
“structural components” (claddings for body and control surfaces, 
engine cowlings and composite parts for engines, wing parts and 
wingtips) as well as components for the interiors of aircraft (such 
as baggage compartments, interiors, service units, etc.). 
 

itself to be the lawful owner of the money and – based on a legal 
opinion obtained – assumes that the money will be reimbursed. 
Miscellaneous expenses thus include an amount of 41,987 EURk 
resulting from the fraud incident which has been allocated to the 
segments on a prorated basis based on revenue. 

Segment reporting is consistent with the internal management 
and reporting of FACC. Due to the product’s different applications, 
three operating segments were created. The “FACC Aerostruc-
tures” segment covers development, manufacture and sales of 
structural components, the “FACC Interiors” segment handles the 
development, manufacture and sales of interiors, and the “FACC 
Engines & Nacelles” segment is responsible for the manufacture 
and sales of engine components. After conclusion of the custom- 

Segments

Fiscal year 2014/15
Aerostructures 

 EUR’000

Engines &
Nacelles
EUR’000

Interiors
 EUR’000

Total
EUR’000

Information on profitability

Revenue    273,269   93,897   161,748   528,914

Earnings before interest, taxes and fair value measurement
of derivative financial instruments   25,045 (22,612) (6,945) (4,512)

Depreciation and amortisation   10,480   6,296   6,523   23,299

Earnings before interest, taxes, fair value measurement of
derivative financial instruments, depreciation and amortisation   35,526 (16,316) (422)   18,787

Information on assets

Assets   371,606   137,354   209,285   718,245

Capital expenditure in the fiscal year   46,313   3,998   27,504   77,815

Segments

Fiscal year 2015/16
Aerostructures 

 EUR’000

Engines &
Nacelles
EUR’000

Interiors
 EUR’000

Total
EUR’000

Information on profitability

Revenue  273,532 116,613 197,396 587,541

Earnings before interest, taxes and fair value measurement
of derivative financial instruments 13,345 (13,285) (23,448) (23,387)

Depreciation and amortisation 11,903 5,090 8,918 25,911

Earnings before interest, taxes, fair value measurement of
derivative financial instruments, depreciation and amortisation 25,248 (8,195) (14,529) 2,524

Information on assets

Assets 334,101 143,502 221,587 699,190

Capital expenditure in the fiscal year 30,407 5,432 15,025 50,864

Profitability without taking into account Fake President Incident

Revenue 273,532 116,613 197,396 587,541

Earnings before interest, taxes and fair value measurement of 
derivative financial instruments 32,877 (5,057) (9,221) 18,599

Depreciation and amortisation 11,903 5,090 8,918 25,911

Earnings before interest, taxes, fair value measurement of 
derivative financial instruments, depreciation and amortisation 44,780 33 (303) 44,510

Profitability without taking into account the fraud incident (Fake President Incident) is as follows:

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT – FACC AG     | 31



er agreements and order processing, the individual orders are 
manufactured in the five plants. Apart from these three operating 
segments, the company as a whole includes the central services 
of finances and controlling, personnel, quality management, 
purchasing and IT (including engineering services). In the form of 
a matrix organisation, these central services support the operating 
segments in the completion of their tasks.

The business area managers report to the Management Board 
(“chief operating decision maker”) in separate monthly manage-
ment review meetings in the course of which the current order 
position, revenue, profit contributions of individual projects, sched- 
ules and milestones, project and development risks, calculation 
and compilation of offers, required capital expenditure and other 
operating topics of importance are discussed and – if necessary – 
followed up by immediate decisions. 
 
The segmented assets as well as expenses and income are as-
signed to the three segments by means of a defined procedure. 
The entire segment revenue represents external revenue from third 
parties. 
 

As regards revenue, segmentation into geographical areas is 
based on the customer’s corporate seat. The majority of segment 
assets are located in Austria. 
 
For the fiscal year ended 28 February 2015, the Group generated 
revenue from two external customers which both exceeded 10% 
of the total revenue; this excess amounted to 158,964 EURk and 
78,662 EURk, respectively.

Internal reporting within the segments is essentially based on in-
formation on profitability. In the course of segment accounting, the 
profitability is calculated on project level by way of direct costing 
and then aggregated into segments. Expenses and income that 
cannot be directly assigned on project level are attributed to the 
segments using defined criteria. 
 
Apart from the depreciation, amortisation and impairment, there 
was no other significant non-cash effective expenditure in the indi-
vidual segments. 
 
The segment assets comprise that part of the current and 
non-current assets used in the operating activities of the seg-
ment. This includes primarily intangible assets, property, plant 
and equipment, cash and cash equivalents, inventories and trade 
receivables. Debt was not assigned to segments, since this is not 
considered in internal control and reporting either. 
 

For the fiscal year ended 29 February 2016, the Group generated 
revenue from two external customers which both exceeded 10% 
of the total revenue; this excess amounted to 191,010 EURk and 
70,775 EURk, respectively.

Revenue from external customers is derived from the production 
of shipsets as well as from providing engineering and other ser-
vices in connection with the production of shipsets. Revenue is 
broken down as follows:

VALUE AS AT FEBRUARY 28, 2015
Austria

EUR’000
USA

EUR’000
Canada 

EUR’000
Germany
EUR’000

Other 
countries 
EUR’000

Total 
EUR’000

Revenue  2,128 177,905 55,788 199,787 93,306 528,914

VALUE AS AT FEBRUARY 29, 2016

Revenue 2,640 169,752 66,743 239,114 109,292 587,541

February 28, 
2015

 EUR’000

February 29, 
2016 

EUR’000

Production 471,374 525,907

Engineering and services 57,540 61,634

Total revenue 528,914 587,541
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Delivery rights are considerations paid for acquiring the right to 
supply certain aircraft components to the customer.

Research expenses of 2,765 EURk (28 February 2015) and 
2,317 EURk (29 February 2016), respectively, were recognised 
through profit or loss. 

With respect to the impairment test for goodwill and other 
non-current assets (particularly development costs), reference is 
made to Note 33.

Fiscal years 2014/15 and 2015/16
Goodwill
EUR’000 

Software
 EUR’000

Delivery
rights

EUR’000

Development 
costs

EUR’000
Other

EUR’000
Total

EUR’000

Acquisition costs

Balance as at March 1, 2014   18,595   17,789   25,331   118,109   1    179,825

Additions   –    957   3,788   30,274   –   35,019

From initial consolidation   –    6   –    –    –    6

Reclassification to current assets   –    –    –    –    –    –  

Disposals   –    –    –  (323)   (1)  (324)

Balance as at February 28, 2015   18,595   18,752   29,119   148,060   –   214,526

Additions   –  530 55 23,983   –  24,568

From consolidation   –  2   –   –   –  2

From deconsolidation   –  (93)   –   –   –  (93)

Disposals   –    –   –   – –   –

Balance as at February 29, 2016   18,595 19,191 29,174 172,043   – 239,003

Accumulated scheduled amortisation 
and write-downs

Balance as at March 1, 2014   –    12,251   13,012   28,255   –    53,518

Scheduled amortisation   –    2,551   1,333   5,516   –    9,400

Write-downs   –    –    –    –    –    –  

Reclassification to current assets   –    –    –    –    –    –  

Disposals    –    –    –  (51)   –  (51)

Balance as at February 28, 2015   –    14,802   14,345   33,720 –   62,867

Scheduled amortisation   – 2,192 1,126 6,751   –  10,069

Write-downs   –   –   –   –   –    –

Reclassification to current assets   –   –   –   –   –    –

Disposals   –   –   –   –   –    –

Balance as at February 29, 2016   – 16,994 15,471 40,471   –  72,936

Carrying amounts as at
February 28, 2015   18,595   3,950   14,774   114,340   –   151,659

Carrying amounts as at
February 29, 2016 18,595 2,197 13,703 131,572   – 166,067
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

7 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  

Certain land and buildings serve as collateral for bank borrowings 
(see Note 13 “Financial liabilities”).

Group finance lease agreements are related to land and buildings 
at acquisition costs in the amount of 20,632 EURk. At the end of 

the fiscal year 2015/16, accumulated depreciation was recognised 
in the amount of 999 EURk, resulting in a net carrying amount of 
the respective assets of 19,633 EURk. 

Fiscal years 2014/15 and 2015/16

Land and 
buildings
EUR’000 

Technical 
equipment

 EUR’000

Factory
and office 

equipment
EUR’000

Construction
in process

EUR’000
Total

EUR’000

Acquisition costs

Balance as at March 1, 2014   83,028        118,997   19,201   22,569   243,795

Additions   13,858   12,361   3,603   12,974   42,796

From (initial) consolidation   –    –    5   –    5

Transfers   4,014   16,862   199 (21,075)   –  

Reclassification to current assets   –    –    –    –    –  

Disposals (75) (221) (590) (403) (1,289)

Balance as at February 28, 2015   100,825   147,999   22,418   14,065   285,307

Additions 540 6,944 2,196 16,616 26,296

From consolidation   –    –  48   –  48

Transfers 162 7,773 264 (8,199)   –  

From deconsolidation   –    –  (5)   –  (5)

Disposals   –    –  (323)   –  (323)

Balance as at February 29, 2016 101,527 162,716 24,598 22,482 311,323

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at March 1, 2014   18,022   83,236   12,677   –    113,934

Accumulated depreciation 2,471   9,135   2,292   –    13,899

Disposals   –  (209) (567)   –  (776)

Balance as at February 28, 2015   20,492   92,162   14,401   –    127,056

Accumulated depreciation   2,843   10,855   2,144   –    15,841

Disposals   –  – (323)   –  (323)

Balance as at February 29, 2016   23,335   103,017   16,222   –    142,574

Carrying amounts as at February 28, 2015   80,332   55,837   8,017   14,065   158,251

Carrying amounts as at February 29, 2016   78,192   59,699   8,376   22,482   168,748

Securities 
EUR’000 

Book-entry
securities
 EUR’000

Total 
EUR’000

Fair value as at March 1, 2014   384 1,346 1,730

Additions   –  – –

Pension re-insurance (plan asset) DBO as at March 1, 20131 – (1,302) (1,302)

Unrealised changes in fair value   41 – 41

Fair value as at February 28, 2015 425 44 469

Additions – – –

Unrealised changes in fair value (17) – (17)

Fair value as at February 29, 2016 407 44 451

1 The pension re-insurance (plan asset) was offset against the provision for pension obligations in the fiscal year 2014/15. The pension re-insurance (plan asset) offset   
 against the provision for pensions in the fiscal year 2015/16 has a carrying amount of 1,635 EURk (refer to Note 16 (a)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 INVENTORIES     

Based on a detailed inventory analysis, value adjustments of inven-
tories were made for slow-moving inventory and due to lower net 
selling prices in the amount of 3,657 EURk (28 February 2015) and 

Securities (listed) 
Available-for-sale securities serve to cover the provision for pen-
sion obligations in accordance with the provisions of Sections 
14 and 116 of the Austrian Income Tax Act (EStG). The carrying 
amount corresponds to the market value at the respective end of 
the reporting period (28 February 2015 and 29 February 2016).

4,128 EURk (29 February 2016). The value adjustments of inven-
tories in the amount of 1,174 EURk (28 February 2015) and 471 
EURk (29 February 2016) were recognised through profit or loss. 

Share

Carrying amount 
as at February 28,

 2015
EUR’000

Carrying amount 
as at February 29,

2016
EUR’000

Techno-Z Ried Technologiezentrum GmbH, Ried im Innkreis 3.14%                 44                    44

Balance            44 44

All non-current financial assets are denominated in EUR.

Carrying amount  
February 28, 2015

EUR’000
February 29, 2016

EUR’000

Raw materials and consumables 62,374 66,969

Unfinished goods 32,233 34,858

Finished goods   4,251 5,996

Balance (net of valuation adjustments)                 98,858 107,823

Book-entry securities (unlisted) 
Book-entry securities (listed) with regard to the Group’s shares in 
Techno-Z Ried Technologiezentrum GmbH, Ried im Innkreis, were 
shown under other non-current financial assets in the consolidated 
statement of financial position as at 29 February 2016. 

9 TRADE RECEIVABLES, RECEIVABLES FROM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEFERRED 
ITEMS, RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED COMPANIES AND NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

The FACC Group applies the zero profit method to account for 
construction contracts in accordance with IAS 11, as the outcome 
of a construction contract can frequently not be estimated reliably 
due to the individual specifications of such contracts. Contract 

revenue is therefore only recognised to the extent of contract 
costs incurred being likely to be recoverable from the customer. 
In the fiscal year 2015/16, construction costs incurred (= contract 
revenue) were recognised in the amount of 21,681 EURk.

Carrying amount
February 28, 2015

EUR’000
February 29, 2016

EUR’000

Trade receivables 91,707 106,384

Receivables from construction contracts (= costs incurred) 28,920 28,633

Receivables from customers 120,627 135,017

Other receivables 15,289 14,037

Accruals and deferrals 2,218 1,300

Receivables from related companies 35,322 19,060

Balance 173,456 169,414
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The value adjustments of trade receivables comprise many 
individual items of which no single item is considered significant on 
its own. 

The majority of the Group’s revenue is based on payment terms 
between 30 and 120 days calculated from date of invoice. 
 
As at 28 February 2015 and 29 February 2016, trade receivables 
of 33,065 EURk and 48,827 EURk were past due but not impaired. 

In connection with the trade receivables from six customers, the 
Group has a cession agreement without recourse with a financial 

These receivables relate to a number of independent customers 
for whom there is no recent history of default. At the end of the 
reporting period, there are no indications that the debtors will not 
meet their obligations.

February 28, 2015
EUR’000

February 29, 2016
EUR’000

Trade receivables and receivables from construction contracts   121,838 136,415

Less value adjustments for trade receivables (1,211) (1,399)

Trade receivables, net   120,627 135,016

Other receivables   15,289 14,037

Accruals and deferrals   2,218 1,300

Receivables from related companies   35,322 19,060

Balance   173,456 169,413

Trade receivables
(past due but not impaired)

Total
EUR’000 

1 to 30 days
EUR’000 

31 to 60 days
EUR’000 

61 to 90 days
EUR’000 

91 to 120 
days

EUR’000 

More than 
120 days
EUR’000 

Balance as at February 28, 2015 33,065 14,029 4,735 1,870 2,789 9,642

Balance as at February 29, 2016 48,827 16,016 1,892 7,352 3,593 19,974

Movements in the value adjustments of trade receivables have developed as follows:

February 28, 2015
EUR’000

February 29, 2016
EUR’000

Valuation adjustment of trade receivables at the beginning of the period 1,498 1,211

Utilisation – –

(Reversal)/addition (287) 188

Valuation adjustment of trade receivables at the end of the period   1,211   1,399

Receivables from construction contracts correspond to the carrying 
amount of receivables from construction contracts reported in the 
consolidated statement of financial position, since no partial settle-
ments were carried out. Retained amounts for partial settlements 
do not exist either.

At the end of the reporting period, the following construction contracts were recognised under assets as amounts to be received from the 
customer:

Prepayments made by customers in connection with construction 
contracts, which are not yet offset by services rendered, were re-
cognised as trade payables showing a carrying amount of 4,023 
EURk (28 February 2015: 3,750 EURk). 

Carrying amount
February 28, 2015

EUR’000
February 29, 2016

EUR’000

Total costs incurred 28,920 28,633

Less partial settlement – –

Receivables from construction contracts   28,920   28,633

institution. The ceded amount reduces the FACC Group’s trade 
receivables.
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With the exception of the receivables stated below, all trade recei-
vables and receivables from related companies – as in the previ-
ous year – have residual terms of less than one year:
 
Receivables from the customer Goodrich, Chula Vista, USA, with 
a notional amount of 4,632 EURk (which corresponds to a pres- 
ent value of 4,568 EURk) and an annual redemption plan (start- 
ing on 15 January 2015 and ending on 15 January 2019), and 
another receivable with a notional amount of 5,447 EURk (which 
corresponds to a present value of 5,001 EURk) and a long-term 
redemption plan that depends on units delivered per year starting 
on 1 March 2014 and ending on the date when 1,108 units will 
have been delivered. Under a development project, a receivable 
from a customer in the amount of 1,518 EURk was recognised 

Other receivables do not show significant amounts of overdue 
receivables. Furthermore, no value adjustments in a significant 
amount were made for these receivables.
 
All other receivables have residual terms of less than one year.  
 
Receivables from related companies include: 

The Group shows receivables from the direct holding company of 
FACC International Co Ltd. as well as from the related companies 
Future Aviation International Investment Co. Ltd., Fesher Aviation 
Component (Zhenjiang) Co. Ltd., Shanghai Aircraft Manufacturing 

as non-current because the payment agreement specifies a long-
term redemption plan depending on the number of units delivered 
per year starting on 1 March 2015.

In the reporting period, an externally controlled fraud incident 
(“Fake President Incident”) resulted in an illegal outflow of the 
Group’s liquid funds in the amount of 52,847 EURk. Immediately 
adopted measures led to the freezing of 10,860 EURk in receiv- 
ing accounts. This amount has been recognised as non-current 
receivable, as the subsidiary FACC Operations GmbH considers 
itself to be the lawful owner of the money and – based on a legal 
opinion obtained – assumes that the money will be reimbursed. It 
is expected that the amounts frozen in receiving accounts will not 
be reimbursed in the short term.

Co. Ltd. and Aerospace Innovation Investment GmbH under 
receivables from related companies in the consolidated statement 
of financial position. 

With regard to receivables from related companies, 12,473 EURk 
are overdue by more than 120 days. No value adjustments in a 
significant amount were made for these receivables. With regard to 
receivables from related companies overdue, the Group received 
payments in the amount of 9,037 EURk after the end of the fiscal 
year 2015/16.

These receivables have residual terms of less than one year.

Carrying amount
February 28, 2015

EUR’000
February 29, 2016

EUR’000

Credit balance with tax authority   11,116 12,156

Other   4,173 2,998

Balance   15,289 15,154

Non-current receivables include:

Carrying amount
February 28, 2015

EUR’000
February 29, 2016

EUR’000

Non-current trade receivables 16,340 11,087

Receivables arising from Fake President Incident – 10,860

Prepayments and deposits 8,257 8,285

Balance 24,597 30,232

Other receivables include:
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February 28, 2015
EUR’000

February 29, 2016
EUR’000

GBP   177 191

USD   123,119   127,533

EUR   50,160   41,689

173,456   169,413

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

(a) Share capital
The share capital of FACC AG amounts to 45,790 EURk and is 
fully paid in. The share capital is divided into 45,790,000 no-par 
shares with a value of 1 EUR per share. 

(b) Capital reserve 
The capital reserve amounts to 221,459 EURk (28 February 2015: 
220,535 EURk). An amount of 924 EURk arising from the reversal 
of a provision resulting from costs that did not affect profit or loss 
in relation to the IPO was allocated to the capital reserve, as at the 
time, the IPO costs were offset directly against equity. 

Carrying amount
February 28, 2015

EUR’000
February 29, 2016

EUR’000

Bank balances1 107,677 56,032

Cash in hand1 20 28

Cheques received1  3,258 155

Balance 110,955 56,215

1 of which bank balances, cash in hand and cheques received denominated in USD in the amount of 46,943 EURk (28 February 2015) and 45,349 EURk (29 February 2016)

(c) Reserves for cash flow hedges
The reserve for cash flow hedges results from changes in the fair 
value of currency hedging instruments that have to be recog- 
nised directly in equity pursuant to IAS 39 (cash flow hedges). The 
effective portion of the changes in the fair value was entered in the 
hedging reserve with no effect on profit/loss. These changes in 
equity are presented net of taxes in other comprehensive income 
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The 
non-effective portion of the changes in the fair value in the amount 
of nil EURk (28 February 2015) and nil EURk (29 February 2016) 
was recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income. The reserve for cash flow hedges is reversed when the 
underlying hedged items affect the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income through profit or loss by reversing the cor-
responding amount in other comprehensive income, thus affecting 
profit or loss.

11 EQUITY AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables, receivables from construction contracts and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(d) Revaluation effects of pensions and termination benefits
Actuarial gains and losses associated with termination and pen- 
sion obligations for previous years as well as the current fiscal year 
are recognised in equity as other reserves for revaluation effects of 
pensions and termination benefits (IAS 19 reserve).

(e) Dividends 
In the reporting period, a dividend was paid in the amount of nil 
EURk (previous year: 19,000 EURk) to the shareholders.

In connection with the promissory note loans 2012 to 2015, 2012 
to 2017 and 2012 to 2019 (variable interest rate between 6M Eu-
ribor +1.2 percentage points and 6M Euribor +2.25 percentage 
points and/or fixed interest rate between 2.82% and 3.7%), a cov- 
enant was agreed upon under which the FACC Group, in its cap- 
acity as the issuer of the promissory note (borrower), is obligated 
to meet a specific equity ratio. As at 28 February 2015, this equity 
ratio as defined in the covenant agreement was slightly undershot. 
As a consequence, the Group classified the liability arising from the 
promissory note loans as current. After the end of the reporting 
period, an agreement was reached with the principal creditors of 
the promissory note loans not to call in the promissory note loans. 

EUR’000

Balance as at March 1, 2014  –

Reclassification to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, net   –

Change in fair values of hedging instruments, net   (19,779)

Balance as at February 28, 2015   (19,779)

Reclassification to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, net   19,779

Change in fair values of hedging instruments, net   10,052

Balance as at February 29, 2016 10,052

Changes in the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts used for hedge accounting purposes are as follows: 

(f) Capital management 
It is the goal of capital management to maintain a strong capital 
base to meet the specific corporate risks (growth and develop-
ment risk) by creating a balanced capital structure. Management 
considers capital to be only the equity as shown in the consoli- 
dated statement of financial position in accordance with IFRS. The 
target is to achieve an equity ratio of at least 30%. As at the end of 
the reporting period, the equity ratio (i.e. the ratio of equity to total 
assets) was 44% (28 February 2015) and 44% (29 February 2016). 

After the end of the reporting period, FACC AG issued a letter of 
comfort in favour of the creditors of the promissory note loans. At 
the end of the reporting period (29 February 2016), there was no 
breach of the covenant by the Group.

With respect to the bond 2013 to 2020, the FACC Group as the 
issuer gave assurances regarding a certain amount of dividend in 
relation to the net income for the year and in relation to a certain 
equity ratio. If these assurances are not met, the bond may fall 
due. At the end of the reporting period (29 February 2016), there 
was no breach of the covenant by the Group.

12 BONDS AND PROMISSORY NOTE LOANS

The following table shows the bonds and promissory note loans issued by the Group: 

Nominal value
EUR’000 

Carrying amount as at
February 28, 2015

 EUR’000

Carrying amount as 
at February 29, 2016 

EUR’000

Promissory note loan 2012 to 2015   3,000   3,000   –

Promissory note loan 2012 to 2017  8,000   8,000   8,000  

Promissory note loan 2012 to 2019   34,000   34,000   34,000

FACC bond 2013-20 (ISIN AT0000A10J83) 90,000 89,067 89,242

Balance 135,000 134,067 131,242
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13 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

The interest rates of the financial liabilities vary from 0.5% to 4.8%.

February 28, 2015

Non-current
EUR’000

Current 
 EUR’000

Total 
EUR’000

Bank borrowings

Investkredit AG, ERP A380 – 1,034 1,034

RLB OÖ/Oberbank, loan with AWS guaranty 2,765 395 3,160

RLB OÖ/Oberbank, loan with security transfer 4,430 632 5,062

Investkredit AG, ERP loan 1,579 1,667 3,246

UniCredit BA, ERP loan with AWS guaranty 2,034 1,060 3,094

OB, FFG loan 1,462 293 1,755

Erste, ERP loan 6,743 – 6,743

RLB, ERP loan 6,068 – 6,068

OB, FFG loan 2,433 – 2,433

Sparkasse, FFG loan 328 – 328

Leasing UniCredit Plant 5 19,486 483 19,969

Raiffeisen Impuls Plant 2 6,965 85 7,050

Raiffeisen Impuls Plant 2 – addition 7,921 227 8,148

RLB GBP ÖB – 1,388 1,388

Raiffeisen Impuls Plant 2 – addition press hangar 1,254 39 1,293

Accrual, interest and expenses – 3,684 3,684

Other 2,800 2,186 4,986

Balance 66,268 13,173 79,441

February 29, 2016

Non-current
EUR’000

Current 
 EUR’000

Total 
EUR’000

Bank borrowings

RLB OÖ/Oberbank, loan with AWS guaranty 2,370 395 2,765

RLB OÖ/Oberbank, loan with security transfer 3,798 632 4,430

Investkredit AG, ERP loan – 1,667 1,667

UniCredit BA, ERP loan with AWS guaranty 1,060 1,060 2,120

OB, FFG loan 877 585 1,462

Erste, ERP loan 4,667 2,333 7,000

RLB, ERP loan 4,200 2,100 6,300

OB, FFG loan 2,105 421 2,526

Sparkasse, FFG loan 281 56 337

Leasing UniCredit Plant 5 18,996 490 19,486

Raiffeisen Impuls Plant 2 6,879 87 6,965

Raiffeisen Impuls Plant 2 – addition 7,847 156 8,003

Raiffeisen Impuls Plant 2 – addition press hangar 1,244 25 1,269

OB, ERP loan 5,900 – 5,900

UniCredit, ERP loan 7,500 – 7,500

RBI, ERP loan 4,200 – 4,200

RLB, FFG loan 1,832 – 1,832

Sparkasse, FFG loan 450 – 450

Export loan KRR – 5,000 5,000

Operating resources accounts – 1,095 1,095

Accrual, interest and expenses (924) 5,532 4,608

OB, ERP loan, CoLT 1,932 – 1,932

Balance 75,213 21,634 96,847
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Certain bank borrowings are secured by liens on company 
properties, by AWS (Austrian Credit Agency) guarantees, federal 
guarantees for loans within the framework of support agreements 
by the Forschungsförderungsgesellschaft (Austrian Research 
Promotion Agency) and transfers of titles on machines by way of 
security. The export loan under the Austrian Kontrollbank’s proced- 

ure is secured by export receivables in the amount of 120% of the 
framework made available. Certain conditions must be complied 
with in order to claim the favourable interest rates on research 
promotion loans. The collaterals for certain bank borrowings in 
connection with land and buildings amounted to 15,966 EURk as 
at 28 February 2015 and 15,966 EURk as at 29 February 2016.

Interest rate risks and the contractually defined interest rate adjustment dates related to variable-interest financial liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period are as follows:

Carrying amount
February 28, 2015

 EUR’000
February 29, 2016 

EUR’000

6 months or less 11,796 13,290

6 to 12 months 47,469 43,986

Balance 59,265 57,276

The carrying amounts of current borrowings approximate the 
fair value, since the impacts of discounts are immaterial. The fair 
values of non-current borrowings bearing fixed interest are based 

on discounted cash flows calculated according to the market 
interest rates (fair value level 2).

The carrying amounts and fair values of non-current financial liabilities bearing fixed interests are:

2014/2015
carrying amount

EUR’000

2014/2015
fair value 

 EUR’000

2015/2016
carrying amount

EUR’000

2015/2016
fair value 
 EUR’000

Investkredit AG, ERP loan 3,246 3,246 – –

BACA ERP loan 3,095 3,095 2,064 2,064

Oberbank FFG loan 1,754 1,754 1,462 1,462

Erste Bank ERP loan 6,743 6,743 6,810 6,810

RLB ERP loan 6,068 6,068 6,129 6,129

OB FFG loan 2,433 2,433 2,455 2,455

Sparkasse FFG loan 328 328 330 330

OB FFG loan 2,800 2,800 1,932 1,932

OB ERP loan (new loan 2015/16) – — 5,653 5,653

UniCredit ERP loan (new loan 2015/16) – — 7,186 7,186

RBI ERP loan (new loan 2015/16) – — 4,024 4,024

RLB FFG loan (new loan 2015/16) – — 1,802 1,802

Sparkasse FFG loan (new loan 2015/16) – — 449 449

Raiffeisen Impuls Plant 2 and additions 16,491 16,491 16,238 16,238

Borrower’s note 5Y 18/07/2017 – — 2,500 2,500

Borrower’s note 7Y 18/07/2019 – — 15,000 15,000

Bond 2013-20 89,068 97,486 89,242 90,220

Balance 132,026 140,444 163,276 164,254
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The full fair value of a derivative financial instrument is classified as 
a non-current asset or liability if the residual term exceeds twelve 
months. If the residual term is less than twelve months, it is classi-
fied as a current asset or liability. 
 
A positive fair value is shown on the assets side under the item 
“Derivative financial instruments”. A negative fair value is reported 
under the item “Derivative financial instruments” on the liabilities 
side. 
 
The maximum credit risk exposure at the end of the reporting 
period corresponds to the fair value of the derivative assets recog-
nised in the consolidated statement of financial position.
 
(a) Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Forward foreign exchange contracts were concluded to hedge 
against the foreign exchange risk. The forward foreign exchange 
contracts that qualify for hedge accounting are shown as cash 
flow hedge in accordance with IAS 39. Forward foreign exchange 
contracts not shown as cash flow hedges are shown as stand- 
alone derivatives. 

The hedged transactions denominated in foreign currency are 
expected to occur during the hedged periods. Gains and losses 
recognised in the hedging reserve in equity on forward foreign 
exchange contracts with no effect on profit or loss are recognised 
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the 
period or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction 
affects the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. This 
is generally within a period of maximum 36 months from the end of 
the reporting period unless the gain or loss is included in the initial 
amount recognised for the purchase of fixed assets.
 
(b) Interest rate swaps 
To hedge against the interest rate risk of the interest-bearing finan-
cial liabilities, interest rate swap contracts were concluded which 
are entered in the consolidated statement of financial position as a 
stand-alone derivative and not as hedge accounting in accordance 
with IAS 39.

The maturity of finance lease liabilities is as follows:

February 28, 2015
 EUR’000

February 29, 2016 
EUR’000

No later than 1 year 972 967

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 3,831 4,140

Later than 5 years 21,443 20,229

Future finance charges on finance lease liabilities (6,277) (5,849)

Present value of finance lease liabilities 19,969 19,487

Interest rate swaps
February 28, 2015

 EUR’000
February 29, 2016 

EUR’000

Interest rate swaps 20,000 20,000

Total 20,000 20,000

Less non-current portion

Interest rate swaps 20,000 –

Current portion – 20,000

February 28, 2015
 EUR’000

February 29, 2016 
EUR’000

No later than 1 year 932 905

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 3,462 4,140

Later than 5 years 15,575 14,442

Total 19,969 19,487

Forward foreign exchange contracts
February 28, 2015

 USD’000
February 29, 2016 

USD’000

Forward foreign exchange contracts 425,000 335,000

Total current 425,000 335,000

14 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The notional amounts of derivative financial instruments are as follows:  

Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease liabilities – minimum lease payments
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February 28, 2015
 EUR’000

February 29, 2016 
EUR’000

Obligations recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position for

Pension obligations (a)   2,929 2,008

Provision for termination benefits (b)   6,898 7,288

Provision for anniversary bonuses (c)   1,089 1,463

Provision for early retirement benefits   10 –

10,926 10,759

15 INVESTMENT GRANTS 

Non-current and current investment grants amount to 11,991 
EURk (28 February 2015) and 13,289 EURk (29 February 2016). 
As a rule, the significant part of the investment grants is subject to 
conditions defined by the granting authority that have to be fulfilled 

16 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 

for a period of three to five years upon acceptance of the final 
settlement. This essentially entails a minimum number of em-
ployees that must be retained, as well as the obligation not to 
move the supported assets from the project location or sell them. 
The other investment grants relate to subsidies for development 
projects and are released over the term of the projects.

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Expenses shown in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Pension obligations   2,288 (674)

Termination benefits   2,025 618

Anniversary bonuses   302 443

Early retirement benefits (21) (10)

  4,594 377

The provision for pension obligations was offset against existing plan 
assets from a pension re-insurance.

(a) Pension obligations
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 28 February 2015 are as follows:

February 28, 2015
 EUR’000

Present value of the pension obligations as at March 1, gross 2,114

Service cost –

Interest expense 71

Revaluation effects (recognised in other comprehensive income, net of deferred taxes) 2,133

Reversal due to retirement of beneficiaries –

Present value of the pension obligations at the end of the period (DBO), gross 4,318

Fair value of plan asset (pension re-insurance) (1,389)

Net liability (provision) as at February 28, 2015 2,929
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The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Service costs   – –

Interest expense   71 65

Revaluation effects (recognised in other comprehensive income, net of deferred taxes)   2,217 (739)

Past service cost – –

Total 2,288 (674)

2014/15 2015/16 

Interest rate 1.50% 2.00%

Pension and salary increases 2.00% 2.00%

Staff turnover – employees none none

Pensionable age – men 60 years 60 years

Life expectancy1 AVÖ 2008-P AVÖ 2008-P

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Present value of provision for termination benefit obligations at the beginning of the period 4,598 6,358

Other termination benefits 539 577

Service cost 258 342

Interest expense 150 145

Revaluation effects (recognised in other comprehensive income, net of deferred taxes) 1,563 73

Termination benefits paid (210) (207)

Present value of provision for termination benefit obligations at the end of the period (DBO) 6,898 7,288

February 29, 2016
 EUR’000

Present value of the pension obligations as at March 1, gross 4.318

Service cost –

Interest expense 65

Revaluation effects (recognised in other comprehensive income, net of deferred taxes) (739)

Reversal due to retirement of beneficiaries –

Present value of the pension obligations at the end of the period (DBO), gross 3,643

Fair value of plan asset (pension re-insurance) (1,635)

Net liability (provision) as at February 29, 2016 2,008

All expenses associated with pensions are shown under “Staff costs” 
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(b) Provision for termination benefits

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 29 February 2016 are as follows: 

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are as follows: 

1 Assumptions regarding future life expectancy are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience in each territory. Mortality 
assumptions are based on the mortality tables in Austria (published by the Austrian Actuarial Association).
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February 28, 2015 February 29, 2016 

Interest rate 2.30% 2.00%

Pension and salary increases 2.00% 2.00%

Staff turnover – employees 2.76% 4.00%

Staff turnover – workers 4.43% 2.70%

Pensionable age – women 60 years 60 years

Pensionable age – men 65 years 65 years

Life expectancy AVÖ 2008-P AVÖ 2008-P

The calculations as at 28 February 2015 and 29 February 2016 are based on the following assumptions:

The statutory transitional provisions regarding the pensionable age 
were taken into account.

All expenses associated with termination benefits with the excep-
tion of the revaluation effects are shown under “Staff costs” in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(c) Provisions for anniversary bonuses 

All expenses associated with anniversary bonuses are shown 
under the item “Staff costs” in the consolidated statement of com-
prehensive income. 
 
Defined contribution plans (pension fund)
Contributions in the amount of 117 EURk (28 February 2015) and 
131 EURk (29 February 2016) were made to the multi-employer 
pension fund for the respective fiscal years.

Defined contribution plans (staff provision fund – new Austrian se-
verance payment scheme, “Abfertigung ‘neu’”)
Contributions in the amount of 1,523 EURk (28 February 2015) 
and 1,524 EURk (29 February 2016) were made to the staff provi-
sion fund in the respective fiscal years.

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Present value of provision for anniversary bonuses at the beginning of the period 787 1,020

Service costs 134 480

Interest expense 26 23

Actuarial gain/loss for the period 112 (45)

Anniversary bonuses paid (39) (15)

Present value of provision for anniversary bonuses at the end of the period 1,020 1,463

Non-wage labour costs 69 –

Recognised provision for anniversary bonuses 1,089 1,463

17 TRADE PAYABLES

The maturity analysis of trade payables as at 28 February 2015 and 29 February 2016 is as follows: 

February 28, 2015
 EUR’000

February 29, 2016 
EUR’000

Within 90 days 71,681 72,667

Over 90 days and within 360 days 406 12

72,087 72‚679
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With regard to warranties, a provision is only made for specific 
obligations.
 
Other provisions include a provision for follow-up costs in relation 
to several development projects in the amount of 1,082 EURk, 

Payables to related companies mainly consist of trade payables.

With regard to warranties, a provision is only made for specific 
obligations.
 
Other provisions include a provision for follow-up costs (outstand- 
ing incoming invoices) in relation to several development projects 

a provision for outstanding travel expenses in the amount of 
167 EURk and a provision for legal disputes in the amount of 
593 EURk.

in the amount of 3,876 EURk, a provision for outstanding shipping 
costs in the amount of 281 EURk and a provision for legal disputes 
in the amount of 713 EURk.

19 OTHER PROVISIONS  

Employees 
 EUR’000

 
Warranties

EUR’000
Other

 EUR’000
Total

EUR’000

Balance as at March 1, 2014   107   1,626   8,743   10,476

Utilisation  (107) (472) (8,192) (8,771)

Reversal   –  (821) (588) (1,409)

New provisions     51   1,106   5,189   6,346

Balance as at February 28, 2015   51   1,439   5,152   6,642

of which current   51   1,439   5,152   6,642

of which non-current   –    –    –    –  

Employees 
 EUR’000

 
Warranties  

EUR’000
Other

 EUR’000
Total

EUR’000

Balance as at March 1, 2015   51   1,439   5,152   6,642

Utilisation  (51) (9) (1,742) (1,802)

Reversal – (1,336) (3,250) (4,586)

New provisions   42 2,803 7,294 10,139

Balance as at February 29, 2016 42 2,897 7,454 10,393

of which current 42 2,897 7,454 10,393

of which non-current   –    –    –    –  

18 OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INCOME, PAYABLES TO RELATED COMPANIES

Carrying amount as at
February 28, 2015

 EUR’000

Carrying amount as at
February 29, 2016 

EUR’000

Social security payables 3,295 3,436

Other liabilities 2,290 1,851

Liabilities towards employees 18,376 18,754

Accruals and deferrals 1,046 1,485

Balance 25,007 25,526
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20 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES 

21 OWN WORK CAPITALISED  

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Finished goods     (427) 1,799

Unfinished goods 3,182 2,625

Total 2,755 4,424

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Capitalisation of development costs 18,508 18,455

Other 254 329

Total 18,762 18,784

Expenses for termination benefits and contributions to staff pro-
vision funds include contributions to staff provision funds in the 
amount of 1,523 EURk (28 February 2015) and 1,524 EURk (29 
February 2016). 

The number of staff employed by the Group is 3,062 persons 
(2,030 workers and 1,032 employees) as at 29 February 2016 
compared to 3,109 persons (1,864 workers and 1,245 employees) 
as at 28 February 2015.

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Cost of materials 315,793 353,619

Cost of purchased services 14,400 20,275

Total 330,193  373,894

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Wages and salaries 124,756 122,186

Expenses for statutory social contributions and benefits 31,887 31,604

Expenses for termination benefits and contributions to staff provision funds 2,209 2,166

Expenses for pensions 189 119

Other social expenses 3,218 2,434

Total (including remuneration of the Management Board) 162,259 158,509

22 COST OF MATERIALS AND PURCHASED SERVICES 

23 STAFF COSTS  
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In addition, Wang Yongsheng in his capacity as managing 
director from 7 March 2014 to 21 March 2014 and Xu Chunlin 
in his capacity as managing director until 7 March 2014 received 
remuneration for their activities as managing directors in the fiscal 

1 of which 2,217 EURk actuarial losses – due to revaluation effects in connection with pension obligations – recognised in other comprehensive income.

year 2014/15. The remuneration was passed on to Aerospace 
Innovation Investment GmbH (now FACC AG) in the fiscal year 
2014/15.

24 REMUNERATION OF MANAGEMENT IN KEY POSITIONS
 
The remuneration as at 28 February 2015 of the members of the Management Board of FACC AG and of the Supervisory Board of 
FACC AG who also serve on the management board and supervisory board of FACC Operations GmbH is set out below:

Name
Fee

EUR’000
Salary

EUR’000

Discretionary 
bonus 

EUR’000

Termination 
benefits

EUR’000

Employer’s
contribution

to retirement 
scheme  

EUR’000
Total

EUR’000

Supervisory Board

Ruguang Geng 8 – – – – 8

Xiangkai Meng (until 28 June 2014) 1 – – – – 1

Hang Huang (until 29 April 2014) – – – – – –

Greg Peters 6 – – – – 6

Jun Tang 7 – – – – 7

Yongsheng Wang 7 – – – – 7

Chunlin Xu (until 21 February 2014) – – – – – –

Weixi Gong 6 – – – – 6

Huimin Zhao (until 28 June 2014) – – – – – –

Yanzheng Lei (since 29 April 2014)          5 – – – –          5

Xueljun Wang (since 28 June 2014)          5 – – – –          5

Chunsheng Yang (since 28 June 2014) 5 – – – – 5

Management Board

Walter Stephan – 369 733 98 2,2881 3,488

Minfen Gu – 266 374 58 4 702

Robert Machtlinger – 257 404 110 7 778

50 892 1,511 266 2,299 5,018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The remuneration as at 29 February 2016 of the members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board is set out below:

1 of which 795 EURk actuarial gains (previous year: 2,217 EURk actuarial losses)  – due to revaluation effects in connection with pension obligations – recognised in   
 other comprehensive income

25 AMORTISATION AND DEPRECIATION  

26 OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES 

Name
Fee 

EUR’000
Salary

EUR’000

Discretionary 
bonus 

EUR’000

Termination 
benefits

EUR’000

Employer’s
contribution

to retirement 
scheme 

EUR’000
Total

EUR’000

Supervisory Board

Ruguang Geng 17 – – – – 17

Greg Peters 23 – – – – 23

Jun Tang 15 – – – – 15

Yongsheng Wang (until 2 February 2016) 20 – – – – 20

Weixi Gong 25 – – – – 25

Yanzheng Lei 15 – – – – 15

Xueljun Wang 12 – – – – 12

Chunsheng Yang 12 – – – – 12

Xiangkai Meng (until 28 June 2014) 1 – – – – 1

Management Board

Walter Stephan – 401 – 66 (674)1 (207)

Minfen Gu (until 2 February 2016) – 275 – 46 8 329

Robert Machtlinger – 326 – 46 8 380

Yongsheng Wang 
(since 2 February 2016) – – – – – –

140 1,002 – 158 (658) 642

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Amortisation of intangible assets 9,400 10,069

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13,899 15,842

Total 23,299 25,911

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Maintenance, servicing and third-party repairs   7,657 7,922

Shipping costs   11,282 8,802

Material testing and certification costs, technical support   4,528 5,391

Rents, leases and building rights costs   6,879 7,451

Travel expenses   3,805 3,093

Allowances, grants and other income (16,537) (12,728)

Miscellaneous expenses (Fake President Incident) – 41,987

Miscellaneous expenses   21,578   13,903

Total   39,192 75,821

In the reporting period, an externally controlled fraud incident 
(“Fake President Incident”) resulted in an illegal outflow of the 
Group’s liquid funds in the amount of 52,847 EURk. Immediately 
adopted measures led to the freezing of 10,860 EURk in receiv- 
ing accounts. This amount has been recognised as non-current 
receivable, as the subsidiary FACC Operations GmbH considers 

itself to be the lawful owner of the money and – based on a legal 
opinion obtained – assumes that the money will be reimbursed.

Miscellaneous expenses thus include an amount of 41,987 EURk 
resulting from the fraud incident.
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The expenses for the Group auditor relating to the relevant fiscal years are as follows:

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Audit of the consolidated financial statements and the financial statements 135 174

Other assurance services – 1

Audit-related consulting services 45 52

Tax consulting services 17 5

Total 197 232

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Interest and bank charges 6,516 8,777

Interest expense – bonds  3,764 3,785

Total 10,280 12,562

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Bank interest 360 305

Income from interest rate swaps – –

Income from securities 10 10

Other interest 253 129

Total 623 444

27 FINANCE COSTS 

28 INTEREST INCOME FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

29 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The recognition of changes in the fair values of derivative financial instruments in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is 
as follows:

Volume 
USD’000

Volume
EUR’000

Fair value  
EUR’000

Recognised 
in “Fair value 

measurement 
of derivative 

financial
instruments”

EUR’000

Recognised 
in “Cash flow 

hedges
(net of tax)”  

EUR’000

Recognised 
in “Other 

operating 
income and 
expenses”

EUR’000

Balance as at February 28, 2015

Forward foreign exchange 
contracts – USD 425,000 – (48,199) – (26,372) (25,417)

Structured currency options – USD – – – – – –

Interest rate swaps – 20,000 (10,340) (387) – –

Balance as at February 29, 2016 

Forward foreign exchange
contracts – USD 335,000 – (28,378) – 13,403 6,418

Structured currency options – USD – – – – – –

Interest rate swaps – 20,000 (5,098) 5,242 – –
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The income tax on the Group’s profit/loss before taxes differs from the calculated income tax expense that would arise if the results of the 
fiscal years were subjected to a tax rate of 25%. This is broken down as follows:

The deferred taxes changed as follows:

30 INCOME TAXES 

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Corporate income tax, current   115 (175)

Tax compensation from group taxation   –    –

Foreign withholding tax   –    –

Deferred taxes (5,101) (8,342)

(4,987) (8,517)

Tax expenses, previous years   10 160

Total (4,976) (8,357)

2014/15
 EUR’000

2015/16 
EUR’000

Loss before taxes (14,556) (30,264)

Calculated income tax expense 25% (3,639) (7,566)

Tax effects from:

Deviating foreign tax rates (45) (191)

Tax free income (839) (677)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 82 186

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses – –

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised 343 103

Other effects/valuation adjustments – deferred taxes (218) (379)

Capitalised deferred taxes – –

Impairment of goodwill – –

Adjustment in respect of prior years (664) 160

Minimum corporate income tax and withholding taxes 4 7

Recognised income tax expense (4,976) (8,357)

March 1, 2014
EUR’000

Changes in the 
consolidated state-

ment of compre-
hensive income 

 EUR’000

Changes in other 
comprehensive 

income
EUR’000

February 28, 2015 
 EUR’000

Deferred taxes

Financial assets (54)   411 (10)   347

Other receivables and assets   132 (36)   –    96

Investment grants   774   511   –    1,285

Obligations towards employees   730 (367) 944   1,307

Derivative financial instruments (897)   6,351   6,596   12,050

Provisions   399 (48)   –    351

Liabilities   6,647   4,706   –    11,353

Tax-loss carryforwards   358   13,531   –    13,889

Intangible assets (development costs) (22,485) (6,130)   –  (28,615)

Property, plant and equipment (6,558) (2,409)   – (8,967)

Inventories   –    –    –    –  

Trade receivables
(mainly differences from USD valuation)   766 (6,484)   –  (5,718)

Bonds (274)   168   –  (106)

Other   333 (2,194)   –  (1,861)

(20,128)   8,010   7,530 (4,589)
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset and recognised 
in the consolidated statement of financial position as an asset or a 
liability when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current in-
come tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when the 
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes 
levied by the same taxation authority.  
 
As at 28 February 2015, deferred income tax liabilities in the 
amount of 4,589 EURk were shown in the consolidated statement 
of financial position. As at 29 February 2016, deferred income tax 
assets in the amount of 241 EURk were shown in the consolidated 
statement of financial position.
 
Within the next twelve months, deferred income tax assets in the 
amount of 16,997 EURk and 12,243 EURk are expected to be 

realised and deferred income tax liabilities amounting to 12,216 
EURk and 13,271 EURk are expected to be settled as at 28 Feb-
ruary 2015 and 29 February 2016, respectively. 
 
Deferred income tax assets on loss carryforwards are recognised 
to the extent that their utilisation seems likely. The Group assesses 
the probability based on available planning data. 

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of 343 
EURk as at 28 February 2015 and 131 EURk as at 29 February 
2016 in respect of losses amounting to 1,373 EURk and 522 
EURk, respectively, that can be carried forward against future 
taxable income in the country of origin of the subsidiary involved.

March 1, 2015
EUR’000

Changes in the 
consolidated 
statement of 

comprehensive 
income 

 EUR’000

Changes in other 
comprehensive 

income
EUR’000

February 29, 2016 
 EUR’000

Deferred taxes

Financial assets   347 62 4 413

Other receivables and assets   96 8   –  104

Investment grants   1,285 (103)   –  1,182

Obligations towards employees   1,307 (215) (184) 908

Derivative financial instruments   12,050 (1,604) (3,351) 7,095

Provisions   351 (629) 19  (259)

Liabilities   11,353 (494)   –  10,859

Tax-loss carryforwards   13,889 13,634   –  27,523

Intangible assets (development costs) (28,615) (4,313)   –  (32,928)

Property, plant and equipment (8,967) 170   –  (8,797)

Inventories   –  –   –  –

Trade receivables
(mainly differences from USD valuation) (5,718) 1,396   –  (4,322)

Bonds (106) 20   –  (86)

Other (1,861) 410   –  (1,452)

(4,589) 8,342 (3,512) 241

The income tax amount that is directly attributed to other comprehensive income consists of the following items:

2014/15 2015/16

 Gross 
EUR’000

Tax
EUR’000

Net  
EUR’000

Gross
EUR’000

Tax
EUR’000

Net
EUR’000

Revaluation effects pensions and termination benefits (3,776) 944 (2,832) 665 (166) 499

Fair value measurement of securities 41 (10) 31 (18) 5 (13)

Cash flow hedge (26,375) 6,596 (19,779) 13,403 3,351 10,052

Total (30,110) 7,530 (22,580) 14,050 3,512 10,538
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections 
based on the multi-year plan approved by management. Cash 
flows beyond this multi-year period are extrapolated using the 
estimated growth rates stated below. The growth rate does not 
exceed the long-term average growth rate of the business in which 
the CGU operates.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculations in 2015/16:

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculations in 2014/15:

The underlying budgets include the planned costs and returns per 
item and quantity based on external data (Airline Monitor, custom- 
er forecasts, etc.), and foreign exchange rate forecasts (EUR/USD) 
of 1.18 to 1.23 (previous year: EUR/USD 1.35). The planning peri-
od with regard to the future cash flows depends on the terms and 
conditions of the respective customer contracts.

32 RENTAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS   
 
The total of future accumulated minimum lease payments from operating leases in connection with property, plant and equipment amount to: 

33 IMPAIRMENT TESTS FOR GOODWILL AND OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (PARTICULARLY DEVELOPMENT COSTS)
 
The following is a summary of goodwill allocation at the segment level:

February 28, 2015
 EUR’000

February 29, 2016 
EUR’000

No later than 1 year 4,291 3,665

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 11,193 10,117

Later than 5 years 6,945 5,422

Total 22,429 19,204

2015/16 Opening Additions Disposals Impairment  Closing

Aerostructures 10,211 –   –   – 10,211

Engines & Nacelles 3,054 – – – 3,054

Interiors 5,330 – – – 5,330

Total 18,595 – – – 18,595

Aerostructures Engines & Nacelles Interiors

Growth rate1 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%

Discount rate2 10.07% 10.07% 10.07%

Average revenue growth p.a. in the planning period 11.80% 11.93% 5.46%

Aerostructures Engines & Nacelles Interiors

Growth rate1 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%

Discount rate2 10.9% 10.9% 10.9%

Revenue development (EBIT margin) extrapolated from the multi-year plan adopted by the Management Board is considered as key 
assumption. The Management Board assumes that standard market margin levels will be maintained and/or achieved in the Aerostructures 
as well as Engines & Nacelles segments (average standard market EBIT margin 7% – 15%). In the Interiors segment, the Management 
Board assumes that the standard market margin level will be reached in the course of the planning period (average standard market EBIT 
margin Interiors 6% – 18%).

1 Weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the planning period
2 Pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flows

1 Weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the planning period
2 Pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flows

31 COMMITMENTS TO ACQUIRE ASSETS

February 28, 2015
 EUR’000

February 29, 2016 
EUR’000

Property, plant and equipment

Authorised but without contractual obligation 35,892 30,701

Contractual obligation, not yet incurred 8,373 5,715

44,265  36,416
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In the planning period, an average revenue growth of 9.8% at the 
Group level was taken into account.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past 
performance and its expectations of market development.

For material assumptions in sensitivity analyses, reference is made 
to Note 2(b)(v). 

Due to the long-term nature of the underlying transaction (contrac-
tual terms of up to 15 years) as well as the resulting longer indust-
rialisation phases (period between five and seven years to achieve 
target margins), management has determined the planning period 
to be six years. It is expected that a steady state of the revenue 
situation for calculating perpetual annuity will only be achieved 
after six years.

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Group companies entered into and executed several transac-
tions with associates of the consolidated group as part of ordinary 
business operations. The transactions were fully consolidated.  
 
Related-party transactions outside of the consolidated group 
for the period 1 March 2014 to 28 February 2015 

With the related company Shanghai Aircraft Manufacturing Co., 
Ltd. revenue was generated in the amount of 9,655 EURk (pre-
vious year: 15,503 EURk). Receivables in the amount of 17,315 
EURk (previous year: 14,201 EURk) are shown in the consolidated 
statement of financial position.

With the related company Fesher Aviation Component (Zhenjiang) 
Co., Ltd. revenue was generated in the amount of 3,329 EURk 
(previous year: 1,218 EURk). Receivables in the amount of 12,739 
EURk (previous year: 11,372 EURk) are shown in the consolidated 
statement of financial position.

With the related company Future Aviation International Investment 
Co., Ltd. revenue was generated in the amount of nil EURk (previ-
ous year: 2,800 EURk). Receivables in the amount of 2,800 EURk 
(previous year: 2,800 EURk) are shown in the consolidated state-
ment of financial position.

A dividend was paid in the amount of 19,000 EURk (previous year: 
1,700 EURk) to FACC International Company Limited. 

The related company FACC International Company Limited was 
charged costs in the amount of 1,811 EURk (previous year: 900 
EURk). Receivables in the amount of 1,811 EURk (previous year: 
900 EURk) are shown in the consolidated statement of financial 
position. 1,811 EURk relates to the prorated costs arising from 
the IPO that are to be allocated to the majority shareholder 
FACC International Company Limited in connection with the sale 
of shares in the course of the IPO. The Management Board of 
FACC AG, after consulting a legal advisor, decided to recognise a 

receivable from FACC International Company Limited. The majority 
shareholder FACC International Company Limited does not share 
this legal interpretation. The Management Board of FACC AG 
assumes that the receivable is recoverable based on this legal 
interpretation and that the legal interpretation will be accepted.

The related company Aerospace Innovation Investment GmbH 
was charged costs in the amount of 166 EURk (previous year: 
nil EURk). Receivables in the amount of 656 EURk (previous year: 
nil EURk) are shown in the consolidated statement of financial 
position.

Related-party transactions outside of the consolidated group 
for the period 1 March 2015 to 29 February 2016 

With the related company Shanghai Aircraft Manufacturing 
Co., Ltd. revenue was generated in the amount of 1,172 EURk 
(previous year: 9,655 EURk). Receivables in the amount of 
5,622 EURk (previous year: 17,315 EURk) are shown in the 
consolidated statement of financial position.

With the related company Fesher Aviation Component (Zhenjiang) 
Co., Ltd. revenue was generated in the amount of 2,122 EURk 
(previous year: 3,329 EURk). Receivables in the amount of 10,469 
EURk (previous year: 12,739 EURk) and payables in the amount of 
234 EURk (previous year: nil EURk) are shown in the consolidated 
statement of financial position.

With the related company Future Aviation International Investment 
Co., Ltd. revenue was generated in the amount of nil EURk (pre-
vious year: nil EURk). Receivables in the amount of 2,800 EURk 
(previous year: 2,800 EURk) are shown in the consolidated state-
ment of financial position.

In the reporting period, a dividend was paid in the amount of nil 
EURk (previous year: 19,000 EURk) to FACC International Com- 
pany Limited.

The related company FACC International Company Limited was 
charged costs in the amount of nil EURk (previous year: 1,811 
EURk). Receivables in the amount of 168 EURk (previous year: 
1,811 EURk) are shown in the consolidated statement of financial 
position.

The related company Aerospace Innovation Investment GmbH 
was charged costs in the amount of nil EURk (previous year: 
166 EURk). Receivables in the amount of nil EURk (previous year: 
656 EURk) and payables in the amount of 34 EURk (previous year: 
nil EURk) are shown in the consolidated statement of financial 
position.

Remuneration – Total remuneration of members of the Manage- 
ment Board amounted to 4,968 EURk1 (28 February 2015 and 
502 EURk (29 February 2016). No loans or advances were 
granted to members of the Management Board.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Key management compensation 

35 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are determined in accordance with IAS 33 by dividing the profit or loss for the year by the number of shares 
issued.

36 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD   
 
No material events occurred after the end of the reporting period. 

37 MANAGEMENT BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD 
 
Members of the Management Board in the reporting period were:

Walter Stephan
Minfen Gu (until 2 February 2016)
Robert Machtlinger
Yongsheng Wang (since 2 February 2016)

Members of the Supervisory Board in the reporting period were:

Ruguang Geng, Chairman
Jun Tang, Deputy Chairman
Weixi Gong
Barbara Huber
Peter Krohe
Yanzheng Lei
Greg Peters
Johann Redhammer (until 30 July 2015)
Ulrike Reiter
Yongsheng Wang (until 2 February 2016)
Xuejun Wang
Chunsheng Yang
Birol Mutlu (since 1 August 2015)

Ried im Innkreis, 20 May 2016

February 29, 2016 

Loss after taxes attributable to the equity holders (in EURk) (21,917)

Average number of shares in issue (number of shares) 45,790,000 

Basic earnings per share (in EUR) (0.48)

February 28, 2015  
EUR’000

February 29, 2016  
EUR’000

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 2,403 1,002

Retirement scheme contributions 2,2991 (658)1

Allocation to provision for termination benefits 266 158

4,968 502

1 of which 795 EURk actuarial gains (previous year: 2,217 EURk actuarial losses) – due to revaluation effects in connection with pension obligations – recognised
 in other comprehensive income

Walter Stephan m. p.
Chairman of the Management Board

Yongsheng Wang
Member of the Management Board

Robert Machtlinger m. p.
Member of the Management Board
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Statement of all Legal Representatives

ACCORDING TO SECTION 82 PARA. 4 STOCK EXCHANGE ACT

We confirm to the best of our knowledge that the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, 
financial position and profit or loss of the Group as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In addition, we confirm to the best of our knowledge that the Group Management Report gives a true and fair view of the development 
and performance of the business and the position of the Group, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties the 
Group faces. 

Ried im Innkreis, 20 May 2016

The Management Board

Walter Stephan m. p.
Chairman of the Management Board

Yongsheng Wang
Member of the Management Board

Robert Machtlinger m. p.
Member of the Management Board

Auditor’s Report
We draw attention to the fact that the English translation of this au-
ditor’s report according to Section 274 of the Austrian Commercial 
Code (UGB) is presented for the convenience of the reader only 
and that the German wording is the only legally binding version.

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial state-
ments of FACC AG, Ried im Innkreis, which comprise the conso-
lidated balance sheet as of 29 February 2016, the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated cash flow 
statement and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for 
the year then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presenta-
tion of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by 
the EU, and the additional requirements under Section 245a UGB, 
and for such internal control as management determines is neces-
sary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with Austrian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Those standards require the application of the International Stan-

dards on Auditing according to which we are to comply with ethical 
requirements and to plan and perform the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material missta-
tement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Group’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum-
stances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion
Our audit did not give rise to any objections. In our opinion, the 
consolidated financial statements comply with legal requirements 
and give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group 
as of 29. February 2016 and of its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the 
EU and the additional requirements under Section 245a UGB.

STATEMENT OF ALL LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES/AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

Emphasis of matter
Without qualifying our audit opinion, we draw attention to the dis- 
closures made by the Company in the notes to the consolidated 
financial statements on the use of assumptions and estimates un-
der “Non-current receivables” (page 8) and under “Other operating 
income and expenses” (page 45), stating that in the fiscal year 
2015/16, an externally controlled fraud incident (fake president 
incident) resulted in an illegal outflow of the Group’s liquid funds 
in the amount of EUR 52,847k. Immediately adopted measures 
led to the freezing of EUR 10,860k in receiving accounts, with this 
amount having been recognised as non-current receivable. Based 
on a legal opinion obtained, the management considers FACC 
Operations GmbH to be the lawful owner of the money and assu-
mes that the money will be reimbursed, even if this will not happen 
in the short term. Consequently, the item “Other operating income 
and expenses” contains a loss balance resulting from the fraud 
incident in the amount of EUR 41,987k.

COMMENTS ON THE MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR THE 
GROUP

Pursuant to statutory provisions, the management report for the 
Group is to be audited as to whether it is consistent with the 
consolidated financial statements and as to whether the other 
disclosures are not misleading with respect to the Company’s 
position. The auditor’s report also has to contain a statement as 
to whether the management report for the Group is consistent 
with the consolidated financial statements and whether the 
disclosures pursuant to Section 243a UGB are appropriate.

In our opinion, the management report for the Group is consis-
tent with the consolidated financial statements. The disclosures 
pursuant to Section 243a UGB are appropriate. 

Linz, 20 May 2016
PwC Oberösterreich
Wirtschaftsprüfung und Steuerberatung GmbH

signed:

Friedrich Baumgartner
Austrian Certified Public Accountant

Disclosure, publication and duplication of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
together with the auditor’s report according to Section 281 (2) UGB in a form not 
in accordance with statutory requirements and differing from the version audited 
by us is not permitted. Reference to our audit may not be made without prior 
written permission from us.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
The Austrian Code of Corporate Governance (ACCG) provides 
Austrian stock corporations with a framework for the manage
ment and control of enterprises. It covers the standards of 
good corporate management common in international busi
ness practice as well as the most important provisions of Aus
trian corporation law that are of relevance in this context. The 
Code aims to establish a system of management and control 
of companies and groups that is accountable and is geared to 
creating sustainable, longterm value. The Code is designed to 
increase the degree of transparency for all stakeholders of a 
company.

DECLARATION OF COMMITMENT

FACC AG respects the Austrian Code of Corporate Gover
nance (ACCG) and committed itself for the first time to compli
ance with the provisions contained in this Code in 2014, follow
ing the first listing of the company shares on the Prime Market 
of the Vienna Stock Exchange. The Supervisory Board also 
unanimously resolved to fully adhere to the ACCG. The Code 
is available on the Internet at www.corporategovernance.at in 
the currently valid version. In accordance with Rule 60 of the 
ACCG, FACC AG is required to prepare and publish a Corpo

rate Governance Report. This Corporate Governance Report is 
publicly available on the website of FACC AG (www.facc.com) 
(CRule 61 of the ACCG).

Deviation from C-Rules
Rule 41: FACC AG has a combined Nomination and Remuner
ation Committee, which performs the function of the Nomina
tion Committee: this committee is referred to as the “Personnel 
and Remuneration Committee”.

CORPORATE BODIES OF FACC AG

Management Board
The Management Board is responsible for managing the busi
ness operations of FACC AG in line with prevailing legal regula
tions, the Articles of Association and the internal rules of pro
cedure. The distribution of responsibilities among the individual 
members of the Management Board is determined in accord
ance with the internal rules of procedure, which also regulate 
the mode of cooperation among the Management Board mem
bers. Furthermore, the Management Board is required to fully 
comply with the rules stipulated in the Austrian Code of Corpo
rate Governance.

Walter Stephan
Chairman of the  

Management Board

Robert Machtlinger
Member of the  

Management Board

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Management Board
Walter STEPHAN (1954)     
Chairman of the Management Board 
First appointed: 2014
Current mandate expires: 2019
Areas of responsibility: Sales & Marketing, Distribution, Research 
& Development, Engineering, Quality Management, Purchasing, 
Legal Affairs, Investor Relations
Supervisory Board mandates in other companies: POLYMER 
Competence Center Leoben GmbH, TechnoZ Ried Technolo
giezentrum GmbH (Chairman)

Robert MACHTLINGER (1967)    
Member of the Management Board
First appointed: 2014
Current mandate expires: 2019
Areas of responsibility: Production, Logistics, Tooling & Industrial 
Engineering, Facility Management, Human Resources
Supervisory Board mandates in other companies: none

Members of the Management Board who resigned from the 
Board in the 2015/16 financial year:

Minfen GU (1965)      
Member of the Management Board
First appointed: 2014

The Supervisory Board revoked the appointment of Minfen Gu 
to the Management Board of FACC AG as of 2 February 2016.

Supervisory Board

Ruguang GENG (1957)     
Chairman since 2009
First appointed: 2014
Current mandate expires: Annual General Meeting 
resolving upon the 2017/18 financial year
Supervisory Board mandates in other companies: none

Jun TANG (1960)      
Vice Chairman since 2011
First appointed: 2014
Current mandate expires: Annual General Meeting resolving 
upon the 2017/18 financial year
Supervisory Board mandates in other companies: none

Yongsheng WANG (1963)     
First appointed: 2014
Current mandate expires: Annual General Meeting resolving 
upon the 2017/18 financial year
Supervisory Board mandates in other companies: none

By a resolution of 2 February 2016, the Supervisory Board dele
gated Yongsheng Wang as a member of the Management Board 
to perform a support function until 30 November 2016 pursuant 
to Section 90 para. 2 of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act. After 
this period Yongsheng Wang will be a member of the Supervisory 
Board again.

Yanzheng LEI (1965)     
First appointed: 2014
Current mandate expires: Annual General Meeting resolving 
upon the 2017/18 financial year
Supervisory Board mandates in other companies: none

Weixi GONG (1962)     
First appointed: 2014
Current mandate expires: Annual General Meeting resolving 
upon the 2017/18 financial year
Supervisory Board mandates in other companies: none

Xuejun WANG (1972)     
First appointed: 2014
Current mandate expires: Annual General Meeting resolving 
upon the 2017/18 financial year
Supervisory Board mandates in other companies: none

Chunsheng YANG (1955)     
First appointed: 2014
Current mandate expires: Annual General Meeting resolving 
upon the 2017/18 financial year
Supervisory Board mandates in other companies: none

Gregory B. PETERS (1947)    
First appointed: 2014
Current mandate expires: Annual General Meeting resolving 
upon the 2017/18 financial year
Supervisory Board mandates in other companies: none

Supervisory Board members designated  
by the Works Council
Barbara HUBER (1965)
First appointed: 2014

Birol MUTLU (1981)
First appointed: 2015

Peter KROHE (1959)
First appointed: 2014

Ulrike REITER (1960)
First appointed: 2014

Members of the Supervisory Board who resigned from the Board 
in the 2015/16 financial year: 

Johann REDHAMMER (1985), a member of the Supervisory 
Board designated by the Works Council, resigned from the Su
pervisory Board in the 2015/16 financial year. 

The FACC International Company Limited has not made use of 
its right in accordance with Section 11.2 of the Articles of Asso
ciation of FACC AG to appoint up to one third of all Supervisory 
Board members, as long as it owns at least 25% of the share 
capital. 

The eight shareholder representatives, currently serving on the 
Supervisory Board, were elected in the Annual General Meeting 
of 23 June 2014.
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INDEPENDENCE OF SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS

The Supervisory Board has adopted the guidelines relating to the 
independence of its members pursuant to Appendix 1 of the Aus-
trian Code of Corporate Governance. As a result, all members of 
the Supervisory Board have declared their independence of the 
company and its Management Board (Rule 53 of the ACCG). 

Gregory B. Peters and Weixi Gong are the members of the Su-
pervisory Board, who do not represent the interests of share-
holders with an equity interest of more than 10% (Rule 54 of the 
ACCG).

NUMBER AND SIGNIFICANT MATTERS RAISED DURING 
MEETINGS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD AND THE COM-
MITTEES

During the 2015/16 financial year, the Supervisory Board of 
FACC AG fulfilled its responsibilities under the law and the Ar-
ticles of Association, holding four ordinary sessions, and two 
extraordinary meetings. In addition to ongoing reports on the 
current economic and financial situation of FACC AG, the ordi-
nary meetings dealt in particular with issues relating to corporate 
strategic development. 

The Audit Committee held two ordinary meetings and one ex-
traordinary meeting and dealt primarily with the preparation and 
review of the company’s consolidated financial statements and 
the individual financial statements, the audit planning of the audi-
tor for the 2015/16 financial year, the effectiveness and smooth 
functioning of both the internal control system and risk manage-
ment as well as with specific accounting matters.

The Personnel and Remuneration Committee met three times in 
the 2015/16 financial year for the evaluation and discussion of a 
new remuneration system for executives. 

The Strategic Committee held three meetings dealing with cor-
porate strategy and the monitoring of company-specific key per-
formance indicators. 

In connection with the “Fake President Incident”, two extraor-
dinary Supervisory Board meetings and one extraordinary Au-
dit Committee meeting were held in the 2015/16 financial year. 
Since these meetings were convened at short notice, they were 
held in the form of a telephone or video-conference and served 
primarily to collect information on the status of corresponding 
forensic investigations as well as resolving upon the necessary 
authorisations needed for further investigations. The Supervisory 
Board was therefore kept abreast about the current status of the 
forensic investigations and the situation of the company.

COOPERATION OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND THE 
SUPERVISORY BOARD 

The Management Board reports to the Supervisory Board on 
fundamental issues relating to the future business policies of both 
the company and the Group as a whole as well as the future 

development of assets and liabilities, financial position and prof-
it or loss. In addition, the Management Board regularly informs 
the Supervisory Board about business performance and the cur-
rent situation of both the company and the Group as a whole in 
comparison to forecasts, while taking future development into 
account. 

REMUNERATION REPORT 

Remuneration of the Management Board
Management Board members’ variable remuneration compo-
nents are linked to both financial performance criteria such as the 
operating result (EBIT) and individually agreed and partly non-fi-
nancial performance indicators. 

No maximum limit has been defined for these variable remuner-
ation components. 

In the 2015/16 financial year, variable remuneration components 
accounted for 0% of total remuneration of the members of the 
Management Board. 

Remuneration of the active members of the FACC AG’s Manage-
ment Board in the 2015/16 financial year:

A D&O insurance policy is currently in place, for which the premi-
ums are paid by the company.

A defined contribution pension scheme has been set up for two 
members of the Management Board, Robert Machtlinger and 
Minfen Gu. Total expenses amounted to TEUR 16 in the 2015/16 
financial year (2014/15: TEUR 11).

For the Chairman of the Management Board Walter Stephan a 
defined benefit pension scheme is in place. Within the framework 
of the pension arrangement concluded between FACC AG and 
Walter Stephan on February 3, 2015, it was agreed that FACC 
AG will finance the pension plan of the Chairman of the Manage-
ment Board for the entire duration of his mandate with an annual 
payment of EUR 170,000. 

No stock option programme has been set up for members of the 
Management Board or for the company’s executives.

Following the early termination of the Management Board’s con-
tracts by the Supervisory Board, members will have certain en-
titlements with regard to basic salaries. Upon scheduled termi-
nation of a contract, Management Board members are entitled 
to severance payments depending on the length of their service 
and in accordance with statutory regulations.

TEUR Fixed Variable Total

Walter STEPHAN 401 0 401

Robert MACHTLINGER 326 0 326

Minfen GU1 275 0 275

1 retired from the Management Board as of 2 February 2016
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Remuneration of the Supervisory Board
Total remuneration for the members of the Supervisory Board 
for the 2014/15 financial year, which was approved by the An
nual General Meeting held on 15 June 2015, amounted to EUR 
114,720 and was distributed as follows:

• for the Chairman of the Supervisory Board:  10,000 EUR
• for the Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Board: 8,800 EUR
• for independent members 
 of the Supervisory Board:  15,100 EUR 
• for members of the Supervisory Board:  7,600 EUR
• for Yongsheng Wang:  17,600 EUR

SUPERVISORY BOARD COMMITTEES IN THE 
2015/16 FINANCIAL YEAR

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee carries out the tasks assigned to it pursu
ant to Section 92 Para. 4a of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act. 
Thus, the Audit Committee is mainly responsible for auditing the 
annual financial statements and preparing their adoption, evalu
ating the proposal made by the Management Board on the dis
tribution of profits as well as reviewing the Management Report. 
The Audit Committee also examines the consolidated financial 
statements and the Group Management Report and makes a 
recommendation for the selection of the auditor. Furthermore, 
the Audit Committee monitors the effectiveness of the internal 
control system, the internal auditing and the risk management 
system of the company. The Committee is required to submit a 
report to the Supervisory Board on its activities.

In the 2015/16 financial year, the Audit Committee met three 
times.

Members
• Yanzheng LEI (Chairman)
• Yongsheng WANG (financial expert)1

• Weixi GONG
• Barbara HUBER

Personnel and Remuneration Committee
The Supervisory Board has set up a Personnel Committee, 
which submits proposals to the Supervisory Board for filling new 
or vacant positions on the Management Board and also deals 
with issues relating to succession planning. Moreover, the Com
mittee submits proposals to the Annual General Meeting for filling 
vacant positions on the Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board has set up a Remuneration Committee, 
which deals with the terms and conditions of employment con
tracts of Management Board members, ensures compliance with 
the CRules 27, 27a and 28 and also assesses the remuneration 
policy with respect to Management Board members at regular 
intervals. 

In the 2015/16 financial year, this Committee met three times.

Members
• Ruguang GENG (Chairman)
• Jun TANG 
• Yanzheng LEI 
• Yongsheng WANG1 
• Weixi GONG 

Strategy Committee
The Supervisory Board has established a Strategy Commit
tee. This Committee focuses on the corporate strategy and on 
monitoring related companyspecific key performance indica
tors. Moreover, it both monitors the measures adopted by the 
Management Board to implement the corporate strategy on an 
ongoing basis and carries out an annual review thereof.

Three meetings of the Strategy Committee were held in the 
2015/16 financial year.

Members
• Jun TANG (Chairman)
• Yanzheng LEI 
• Yongsheng WANG1

• Weixi GONG
• Ulrike REITER

PROMOTION OF WOMEN ON THE MANAGEMENT 
BOARD, SUPERVISORY BOARD AND IN EXECUTIVE PO-
SITIONS

The proportion of female employees within the FACC Group de
creased from 38.3% to 22% in the 2015/16 financial year. The 
percentage of female apprentices remained almost constant at 
35% in the year under review.

There are no explicit women’s quotas in any of the subsidiaries 
of the FACC Group. The still relatively low proportion of women 
employed in the company compared to other economic sectors 
is mainly attributable to sectorspecific factors. 

FACC AG is committed to promoting equal opportunities at the 
workplace and strongly opposes any form of gender discrimi
nation.

POSITION OF THE SHAREHOLDERS

Each share grants shareholders one vote at the Annual Gener
al Meeting of FACC AG. Unless mandatory statutory provisions 
require otherwise, the Annual General Meeting shall pass reso
lutions by a simple majority of votes cast. Resolutions requiring 
equity majority are passed by a simple majority of the capital 
stock represented at the time when the resolution is adopted. 
None of the shares conveys special control rights.  

DIRECTORS’ DEALINGS

In the 2015/16 financial year, a total of six share trading transac
tions concluded by individuals of FACC AG subject to reporting 
obligations were published on the website of the Financial Mar
ket Authority (FMA).

1 By a resolution of 2 February 2016, the Supervisory Board delegated Yongsheng Wang as a member of the Manage-
ment Board to perform a support function until 30 November 2016 pursuant to Section 90 para. 2 of the Austrian Stock 
Corporation Act. After this period Yongsheng Wang will be a member of the Supervisory Board again.
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Bestätigungsvermerk 
 
 
Bericht zum Jahresabschluss  
 
Wir haben den beigefügten Jahresabschluss der FACC AG, Ried im Innkreis, bestehend aus der 
Bilanz zum 29. Februar 2016, der Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung für das an diesem Stichtag 
endende Geschäftsjahr sowie dem Anhang, geprüft.  
 
Verantwortung der gesetzlichen Vertreter für den Jahresabschluss 
 
Die gesetzlichen Vertreter sind verantwortlich für die Aufstellung und sachgerechte Gesamt-
darstellung dieses Jahresabschlusses in Übereinstimmung mit den österreichischen unterneh-
mensrechtlichen Vorschriften und für die internen Kontrollen, die die gesetzlichen Vertreter als 
notwendig erachten, um die Aufstellung eines Jahresabschlusses zu ermöglichen, der frei von 
wesentlichen – beabsichtigten oder unbeabsichtigten – falschen Darstellungen ist. 
 
Verantwortung des Abschlussprüfers 
 
Unsere Aufgabe ist es, auf der Grundlage unserer Prüfung ein Urteil zu diesem Jahresabschluss 
abzugeben. Wir haben unsere Abschlussprüfung in Übereinstimmung mit den österreichischen 
Grundsätzen ordnungsgemäßer Abschlussprüfung durchgeführt. Diese Grundsätze erfordern 
die Anwendung der internationalen Prüfungsstandards (International Standards on Auditing). 
Nach diesen Grundsätzen haben wir die beruflichen Verhaltensanforderungen einzuhalten und 
die Abschlussprüfung so zu planen und durchzuführen, dass hinreichende Sicherheit darüber 
erlangt wird, ob der Jahresabschluss frei von wesentlichen falschen Darstellungen ist. 
 
Eine Abschlussprüfung beinhaltet die Durchführung von Prüfungshandlungen, um Prüfungs-
nachweise für die im Jahresabschluss enthaltenen Wertansätze und sonstigen Angaben zu er-
langen. Die Auswahl der Prüfungshandlungen liegt im pflichtgemäßen Ermessen des Ab-
schlussprüfers. Dies schließt die Beurteilung der Risiken wesentlicher – beabsichtigter oder un-
beabsichtigter – falscher Darstellungen im Jahresabschluss ein. Bei der Beurteilung dieser Risi-
ken berücksichtigt der Abschlussprüfer das für die Aufstellung und sachgerechte Gesamt-
darstellung des Jahresabschlusses durch die Gesellschaft relevante interne Kontrollsystem, um 
Prüfungshandlungen zu planen, die unter den gegebenen Umständen angemessen sind, jedoch 
nicht mit dem Ziel, ein Prüfungsurteil zur Wirksamkeit des internen Kontrollsystems der Gesell-
schaft abzugeben. Eine Abschlussprüfung umfasst auch die Beurteilung der Angemessenheit 
der angewandten Rechnungslegungsgrundsätze und der Vertretbarkeit der von den gesetzli-
chen Vertretern ermittelten geschätzten Werte in der Rechnungslegung sowie die Beurteilung 
der Gesamtdarstellung des Jahresabschlusses. 
 
Wir sind der Auffassung, dass die von uns erlangten Prüfungsnachweise ausreichend und ge-
eignet sind, um als Grundlage für unser Prüfungsurteil zu dienen. 
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Prüfungsurteil 
 
Unsere Prüfung hat zu keinen Einwendungen geführt. Nach unserer Beurteilung entspricht der 
Jahresabschluss den gesetzlichen Vorschriften und vermittelt ein möglichst getreues Bild der 
Vermögens- und Finanzlage der Gesellschaft zum 29. Februar 2016 sowie der Ertragslage der 
Gesellschaft für das an diesem Stichtag endende Geschäftsjahr in Übereinstimmung mit den 
österreichischen unternehmensrechtlichen Vorschriften. 
 
 
Aussagen zum Lagebericht 
 
Der Lagebericht ist auf Grund der gesetzlichen Vorschriften darauf zu prüfen, ob er mit dem 
Jahresabschluss in Einklang steht und ob die sonstigen Angaben im Lagebericht nicht eine fal-
sche Vorstellung von der Lage der Gesellschaft erwecken. Der Bestätigungsvermerk hat auch 
eine Aussage darüber zu enthalten, ob der Lagebericht mit dem Jahresabschluss in Einklang 
steht und ob die Angaben nach § 243a UGB zutreffen. 
 
Der Lagebericht steht nach unserer Beurteilung in Einklang mit dem Jahresabschluss. Die An-
gaben nach § 243a UGB sind zutreffend. 
 
 
 
Linz, den 20. Mai 2016 
 
 

PwC Oberösterreich 
Wirtschaftsprüfung und 
Steuerberatung GmbH 

 
 

gez.: 
 

Mag. Friedrich Baumgartner 
Wirtschaftsprüfer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Eine von den gesetzlichen Vorschriften abweichende Offenlegung, Veröffentlichung und Vervielfältigung 
im Sinne des § 281 Abs. 2 UGB in einer von der bestätigten Fassung abweichenden Form unter Beifügung 
unseres Bestätigungsvermerks ist nicht zulässig. Im Fall des bloßen Hinweises auf unsere Prüfung bedarf 
dies unserer vorherigen schriftlichen Zustimmung.  
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Erklärung der gesetzlichen Vertreter 
Wir bestätigen nach bestem Wissen, dass der im Einklang mit den maßgebenden 
Rechnungslegungsstandards aufgestellte Jahresabschluss des 
Mutterunternehmens ein möglichst getreues Bild der Vermögens-, Finanz- und 
Ertragslage des Unternehmens vermittelt. 
 
Ebenso bestätigen wir nach bestem Wissen, dass der Lagebericht den 
Geschäftsverlauf, das Geschäftsergebnis und die Lage des Unternehmens so 
darstellt, dass ein möglichst getreues Bild der Vermögens-, Finanz- und Ertragslage 
entsteht, und dass der Lagebericht die wesentlichen Risiken und Ungewissheiten 
beschreibt, denen das Unternehmen ausgesetzt ist. 
 
Ried im Innkreis, am 20. Mai 2016 

 

Walter Stephan e. h. Robert Machtlinger e. h.  Yongsheng Wang 

Vorstandsvorsitzender Mitglied des Vorstands Mitglied des Vorstands 
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